
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING
September 4, 2018–8:30 a.m.

Escambia County Central Office Complex
3363 West Park Place, Room 104

             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the August 7, 2018  Planning Board Rezoning
Meeting.

 

5. Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.  
 

7. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   Case #: Z-2018-08
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Blue Water Creek Estates,

Inc, owner
Address: 900 Highway 97 BLK behind
Property
Size:

210 (+/-) acres

From: Agr, Agricultural district (one du/20 acres)
To: RR, Rural Residential district (one du/four acres)

 

B.   Case #: Z-2018-09
Applicant: Ronald C. Williams, Owner
Address: 1900 Block Tate Rd



Property Size: 1.66 (+/-) acres
From: LDR, Low Density Residential district (4 du/acre)
To: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (7 du/acre)

 

C.   Case #: Z-2018-11
Applicant: Gilbert Nelson, Owner
Address: Dogwood Place
Property Size: 9.1 (+/-) acres
From: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)
To: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

 

D.   Case #: Z-2018-13
Applicant: Robert O. Beasley, Agent for Crosby Holdings, LLC., Owner
Address: 2335 Klinger Street 
Property Size: 0.46 (+/-) acres
From: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)
To: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)

 

E.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of Russo Subdivision, a Planned
Unit Development

That the Board review the development plan for Bridlewood residential
subdivision, a Planned Unit Development (PUD), and confirm consistency of
the plan with Land Development Code (LDC) requirements prior to transmittal
of a recommendation to the Board of  County Commissioners (BCC) to review
and consider the plan for a final decision.

 

8. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 09/04/2018  

Agenda Item:
RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the Meeting Resume'
Minutes of the August 7, 2018  Planning Board Rezoning Meeting.

Attachments
Draft August 7, 2018 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL REZONING

 August 7, 2018

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:31 A.M. – 11:02 A.M.)
(11:13 A.M. - 11:14 A.M.)

(1:22 P.M.)
Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Alan Gray   
  Eric Fears   
  William Clay   
Absent: Patty Hightower
  Stephen Opalenik
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Administrative Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Wayne Briske.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Alan Gray 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the reading
of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved
 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the July 10, 2018, Planning Board Rezoning Meeting.

 

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Alan Gray 

Motion was made to approve the Rezoning Planning Board meeting minutes
from July 10, 2018. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved
 

5.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
 



  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the Rezoning Planning Board meeting packet for
August 7, 2018. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved
 

6.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

7.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     Case #: Z-2018-10
Applicant: Kerry Anne Schultz, Agent

for Marian E Hendrix,
Trustee

Address: 9600 Block of Rebel Road
Property
Size:

28.42 (+/-) acres

From: LDR, Low Density
Residential district (four
du/acre)

To: MDR, Medium Density
Residential district (10
du/acre)

Tim Pyle acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication regarding
this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any conflict
of interest. 

  

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to accept the TTO comments into evidence. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Alan Gray 

Motion was made to accept Jason Rebol as Expert Witness. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Alan Gray 

Motion was made to accept Staff Exhibit A into evidence. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Approved
 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC because the Applicant's
argument was persuasive enough to not consider this exactly spot zoning. 

  Vote: 5 - 2 Approved
 

Voted No: Jay Ingwell 
  William Clay 

 

B.     Case #: Z-2018-08
Applicant: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page,

Agent for Blue Water Creek
Estates, Inc, owner

Address: 900 Highway 97 BLK behind

  



Property
Size:

210 (+/-) acres

From: Agr, Agricultural district (one
du/20 acres)

To: RR, Rural Residential district
(one du/four acres)

CASE WAS NOT HEARD BY THE PLANNING BOARD - WILL BE HEARD BY THE
PLANNING BOARD ON SEPTEMBER 4, 2018.

 

8.  Adjournment.
 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 09/04/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-08
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Blue Water Creek Estates,

Inc, owner 

ADDRESS: 900 Highway 97 BLK behind, 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: portions of 20-3N-31-1000-000-000 and
19-3N-31-1101-000-000

FUTURE LAND USE: AG, Agriculture (proposed RC,
pending approval of
LSA-2018-01)

 

DISTRICT: 5  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: None 

BCC MEETING DATE: 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: Agr, Agricultural district (one du/20 acres)

TO: RR, Rural Residential district (one du/four acres)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. General descriptions, range of allowable uses,



and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land use categories
in Escambia County are outlined below.
POLICIES FLU 3.1.1 Infrastructure Expenditures. Escambia County will limit the
expenditure of public funds for infrastructure improvements or extensions that would
increase the capacity of those facilities beyond that necessary to support the densities
and intensities of use established by this plan unless such expenditures are necessary to
implement other policies of this plan.
FLU 3.1.2 Water Facility Extensions. Escambia County will coordinate with potable water
providers on any extensions of potable water facilities in the rural area.
FLU 3.1.3 FLUM Amendments. During consideration of FLUM amendments, Escambia
County will consider the impacts of increased residential densities to the agriculture and
silviculture industries as well as public facility maintenance and operation expenditures
(i.e., roads, water, sewer, schools,) needed to serve the proposed development.
FLU 3.1.4 Rezoning. Escambia County will protect agriculture and the rural lifestyle of
northern Escambia County by permitting rezonings to districts, allowing for higher
residential densities in the Rural Community (RC) future land use category.
FLU 3.1.5 New Rural Communities. To protect silviculture, agriculture, and
agriculture-related activities Escambia County will not support the establishment of new
rural communities.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to Rural Residential is not consistent with the intent and
purpose of Future Land Use Map (FLUM) category, as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. Based
on the application language, the owner is proposing to develop the 210 +/- acres parcel,
as identified in the signed and sealed survey produced by KJM Land Planning, LLC,
dated 5/24/18, submitted as part of the applications, into lots ranging from four to twelve
acres to accommodate a 38 lot single-family residential subdivision. Under the FLU AG
the maximum residential density is one dwelling unit per twenty acres. A FLU change  to
RC will be required. 
Highway 97 is designated as a County minor arterial road and access to the site will be
provided from this existing roadway; based on the general application language from the
owner and the remote location of the proposed development major infrastructure
improvements may have to occur within the parcel to support the type of development
proposed, as is not available at this time; however, staff is not able to analyze or
determine the  level of impact or the necessary infrastructure improvements that will be
required as identified in  FLU 3.1.1. The applicant described the future need for septic
tanks, as the area lacks public sewer service and also identified ECUA, as the potential
solid waste provider. Ultimately, any proposed development allowed under the permitted
uses for the requested zoning will require review and approval thru the Development
Review process. The applicant did provide a letter from a representative of Molino
Utilities, Inc, Randy Weaver, Operation Manager, that states that adequate pressure and
volume exist to provide potable water and fire protection for the new housing
development, addressing the requirements under FLU 3.1.2.

Based on the application language, this area was originally owned by the St. Regis
Paper Company; research reflects that the Company's primary objective is to manage
and sell timberland. If the property is identified as containing prime farmland, using the
current County's definitions, at the time of review for any proposed development, the



Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code regulatory language that supports
the protection of agricultural activities, such as silviculture, will be implemented, in order
to address the requirements under FLU 3.1.3. Spatial analysis of the surrounding area
show that a considerable amount of the parcels located South of Highway 97 are smaller
in size, trending into a more dense development character; conversely, parcels North of
Highway 97 are larger in size, displaying a less dense development pattern. 

An analysis of the overall long-range development trends and needs for the County
suggest that future areas of development have already been identified and addressed by
the adoption of the Escambia County Mid-West Sector Plan. The Sector Plan layout
results from analysis of demographics, market data, environmental resources, zoning
and land uses, as well the identification of available infrastructure and public services.
The Comprehensive Plan specifically identifies silviculture as one of the protected
agricultural activities and clearly states that Escambia County will not support the
establishment of new rural communities. Based on that guidance, the adopted Sector
Plan and the location of the proposed development, it is staff's opinion that supporting
this amendment would be in contravention with the direction under FLU 3.1.5.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

Sec. 3-2.2 Agricultural district (Agr).
(a) Purpose. The Agricultural (Agr) district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for the routine agricultural production of plants and animals, and such related
uses as silviculture and aquaculture. The primary intent of the district is to avoid the loss
of prime farmland to other uses, its division into smaller parcels of multiple owners, and
other obstacles to maintaining or assembling sufficient agricultural acreage for efficient
large-scale farming. Other than agricultural production, non-residential uses within the
Agricultural district are generally limited to rural community uses that directly support
agriculture, and to public facilities and services necessary for the basic health, safety,
and welfare of a rural population. The absence of urban or suburban infrastructure is
intentional. Residential uses within the district are largely self-sustaining, consistent with
rural land use and limited infrastructure. Single-family dwellings are allowed at a very low
density sufficient for the needs of the district’s farm-based population.

Sec. 3-2.3 Rural Residential district (RR).
(a) Purpose. The Rural Residential (RR) district establishes appropriate areas and land
use regulations for low density residential uses and compatible non-residential uses
characteristic of rural land development. The primary intent of the district is to provide for
residential development at greater density than the Agricultural district on soils least
valuable for agricultural production, but continue to support small-scale farming on more
productive district lands. The absence of urban and suburban infrastructure is intentional.
Residential uses within the RR district are largely self-sustaining and generally limited to
detached single-family dwellings on large lots, consistent with rural land use and limited
infrastructure. Clustering of smaller residential lots may occur where needed to protect
prime farmland from non-agricultural use. The district allows public facilities and services



prime farmland from non-agricultural use. The district allows public facilities and services
necessary for the basic health, safety, and welfare of a rural population, and other
non-residential uses that are compatible with agricultural community character.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the RR district are limited to the following:
  (1) Residential.
      a. Manufactured (mobile) homes, excluding new or expanded manufactured home
parks or subdivisions.
      b. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached only, on lots
four acres or larger, or on lots a minimum of one acre        if clustered to avoid prime
farmland.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(2) Retail sales. No retail sales except as permitted agricultural and related uses in this
district.
(3) Retail services. Bed and breakfast inns. No other retail services except as permitted
agricultural and related uses or as conditional uses in this district.
(4) Public and civic.
     a. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
     b. Clubs, civic or fraternal.
     c. Educational facilities, K-12, on lots one acre or larger.
    d. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
    e. Funeral establishments.
    f. Places of worship on lots one acre or larger.
    g. Public utility structures 150 feet or less in height, excluding telecommunications
towers.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(5) Recreation and entertainment.
     a. Campgrounds and recreational vehicle parks on lots five acres or larger.
     b. Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active outdoor
recreational facilities, including associated country clubs.
     c. Marinas, private.
     d. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
     e. Passive recreational uses.
See also conditional uses in this district.
(6) Industrial and related. [Reserved]
(7) Agricultural and related.
     a. Agriculture, including raising livestock, storing harvested crops, and cultivation of
nursery plants. A minimum of two acres for keeping any farm animal on site and a
maximum of one horse or other domesticated equine per acre.
     b. Aquaculture, marine or freshwater.
     c. Farm equipment and supply stores.
     d. Kennels and animal shelters on lots two acres or larger.
     e. Produce display and sales of fruit, vegetables and similar agricultural products. All
structures for such use limited to non-residential         
     farm buildings.
     f. Silviculture.
     g. Stables, public or private, on lots two acres or larger.
     h. Veterinary clinics. A minimum of two acres for boarding animals.



(8) Other uses. [Reserved]
(c) Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, the
BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the RR district:
   (1) Residential.
     a. Group living, limited to nursing homes, assisted living facilities, hospice facilities,
and other uses providing similar services, assistance, or supervision.
     b. Manufactured (mobile) home parks on land zoned VR-1 prior to adoption of RR
zoning.
     c. Two-family dwellings (duplex) and multi-family dwellings up to four units per
dwelling (triplex and quadruplex) on land zoned VR-1 prior
     to adoption of RR zoning.
  (2) Retail services. Medical clinics, including those providing out-patient surgery,
rehabilitation, and emergency treatment.
  (3) Public and civic.
      a. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
      b. Educational facilities not among the permitted uses of the district.
      c. Hospitals.
      d. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
      e. Public utility structures greater than 150 feet in height, and telecommunications
towers of any height, excluding any industrial uses.
      f. Warehousing or maintenance facilities for government agencies or public utilities.
  (4) Recreation and entertainment.
     a. Hunting clubs and preserves.
     b. Off-highway vehicle commercial recreation facilities on lots 20 acres or larger.
     c. Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
     d. Shooting ranges.
  (5) Industrial and related.
     a. Borrow pit and reclamation activities 20 acres minimum and subject to local permit
and development review requirements per Escambia
     County Code of Ordinances, Part I, Chapter 42, article VIII, and land use regulations
in Part III, the Land Development Code, chapter 4.
     b. Mineral extraction, including oil and gas wells.
     c. Power plants.
     d. Salvage yards, not including any solid waste facilities.
     e. Solid waste collection points and transfer facilities.
     f. Wastewater treatment plans.
  (6) Other uses. Airports, private only, including crop dusting facilities.
(d) Site and building requirements. The following site and building requirements apply to
uses within the RR district:
  (1) Density. A maximum density of one dwelling unit per four acres.
  (2) Floor area ratio. A maximum floor area ratio of 0.25 for all uses.
  (3) Structure height. No maximum structure height unless prescribed by use.
  (4) Lot area. No minimum lot area unless prescribed by use.
  (5) Lot width. A minimum lot width of 40 feet at the street right-of-way for cul-de-sac lots
and 100 feet at the street right-of-way for all other 
  lots.
  (6) Lot coverage. Minimum pervious lot coverage of 30 percent (70 percent maximum



semi-impervious and impervious cover) for all uses.
  (7) Structure setbacks. For all principal structures, minimum setbacks are:
     a. Front and rear. Forty feet in the front and rear.
     b. Sides. On each side, five feet or 10 percent of the lot width at the street
right-of-way, whichever is greater, but not required to exceed 15
     feet.
     c. Corner lots. Will have one front setback and one side setback.
   (8) Other requirements.
     a. Farm animal shelters. Stables or other structures for sheltering farm animals shall
be at least 50 feet from any property line and at least
     130 feet from any dwelling on adjacent property.
     b. Chapters 4 and 5. Refer to chapters 4 and 5 for additional development regulations
and standards.
(e) Location criteria. The following location criteria apply to uses within the RR district:
  (1) Prime farmland. All new or expanded uses shall be located to avoid the loss of
prime farmland. Where such loss cannot be avoided, it shall be limited to five acres or 10
percent of the development parcel area, whichever is greater.
  (2) Non-residential uses. All non-residential uses shall be located to avoid nuisance,
hazard and other adverse impacts to surrounding residential uses. Retail sales and
services shall be located along collector or arterial streets. Industrial uses shall be on
parcels that comply   with the location criteria of the Industrial (Ind) zoning district.
(f) Rezoning to RR. Rural Residential zoning may be established only within the Rural
Community (RC) future land use category. The district is suitable for rural areas not used
to support large farming operations due to economic viability, soil productivity,
surrounding development, or similar constraints. The district is appropriate to provide
transitions between areas zoned or used for agriculture, conservation, or outdoor
recreation and areas zoned or used for rural mixed-use or low density residential.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The current request to amend the zoning and assign RR, is not
compatible with the existing AG FLU, as stated in Sec. 3-2.3 Rural Residential district
(RR), (f), Rezoning to RR Rural Residential zoning may be established only within the
Rural Community (RC) future land use category. Based on staff's analysis of the
surrounding areas, approval of the proposed rezoning would allow for this area to
become transitional in nature, between the existing agricultural uses and the proposed
residential development.

Based on public records the primary use for this parcels is timber production;
furthermore, the proposed RR district intent is to provide for residential development at
greater density than the Agricultural district, on soils least valuable for agricultural
production, but continue to support small-scale farming on more productive district lands.
The absence of urban and suburban infrastructure is intentional. Residential uses within
the RR district are largely self-sustaining and generally limited to detached single-family
dwellings on large lots, consistent with rural land use and limited infrastructure. The
predominant surrounding zoning district within 500' is Agr.  
Sec. 3-2.3(a) does contain language that requires the clustering of smaller residential
lots where needed to protect prime farmland. The district also also provides language in



Sec. 3-2.3(b) allowing for lots a minimum of one acre if clustered, to avoid prime
farmland. 
Under Sec. 3-2.3(e)(1) Prime farmland, all new or expanded uses shall be located to
avoid the loss of prime farmland. Where such loss cannot be avoided, it shall be limited
to five acres or 10 percent of the development parcel area, whichever is greater. The
LDC define prime farmland as follows:
Prime farmland. One of several classes of land defined in the Soil Survey of Escambia
County, Florida, U.S. Department of Agriculture, as having the best combination of
physical and chemical characteristics for producing food, feed, forage, fiber, and oilseed
crops, and available as cultivated land, pastureland, forestland or other lands not built
upon or urbanized. As shown in the provided soils map portions of the contain prime
farmland, as defined by the LDC. 
The applicant did not address the standards for prime farmland development, as
identified in the LDC, or any of the current zoning district requirements to protect such
areas. If the rezoning is approved, the language under LDC Sec. 3-2.3(e)(1) will be
implemented during the Site Plan Review Process. 

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses 
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses. The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area;
within the 500' radius search area, all parcels are zoned Agr. The following by parcel
land uses were identified: three improved agricultural, four timberland, two single family,
three vacant single family and one miscellaneous residential. Analysis of the surrounding
area shows that North of Highway 97 there are large tracks of agricultural land; to the
South of Highway 97, the predominant trend shows smaller tracks of land with single
family uses, intermixed.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning.  Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a
condition of spot zoning as defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless
be transitional in character between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those
districts would be minor or sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating
characteristics or conditions demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of
interests between the isolated district and adjoining lands.  As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot
Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its size, that is different from the
zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is usually higher in its density or
intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore, extend privileges not generally
extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is not by itself prohibited, but due
to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a higher burden of demonstration



to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a higher burden of demonstration
that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and orderly development.

FINDINGS
Approval of the amendment as requested would create spot zoning, as defined in
Chapter 6 of the LDC, by allowing an isolated zoning designation different from all
adjacent land. Analysis of the surrounding uses within the contiguous lands identify that
the agricultural uses and zoning are prevalent. The primary intent of the district is to
provide for residential development at greater density than the Agr zoning district on
soils least valuable for agricultural production. As discussed early, the definition of prime
farmland and the protection of agricultural activities to include silviculture, are clearly
identified in the Comprehensive Plan and the LDC. The applicant did not address the
protection of agricultural activities or prime farmland. The applicant did state that the
proposed use of the property  would not have an adverse impact on adjoining zoning
categories as it will be single-family residential homes.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions.  
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property have 
changed. Historical records show three approved rezonings between 2006-2007, on
parcels located South of Hwy 97. All approved rezonings granted a higher development
density than what is allowed under the original zoning: 

Rezoning case Z-2006-52, 9100 Sunshine Hill Road, changing the zoning of a parcel
from VAG-1, Villages Agriculture Districts (5du/100 acres on 1-acre parcels) to VAG-2,
Villages Agriculture Districts (1du/5 acres). Resulted in the platted subdivision of
Sunshine Hill Estates. 
 Rezoning case Z-2006-78, 9601 Sunshine Hill Road, changing the zoning of a parcel
from VAG-1, Villages Agriculture Districts (5du/100 acres on 1-acre parcels) to VAG-2,
Villages Agriculture Districts (1du/5 acres).
Rezoning case Z-2007-12, 9651 Sunshine Hill Road, changing the zoning of a parcel
from VAG-1, Villages Agriculture Districts (5du/100 acres on 1-acre parcels) to VAG-2,
Villages Agriculture Districts (1du/5 acres). 
Although the rezonings were approved at that time, it is staff's opinion that the semi-rural
character of the area still trends towards the large agricultural use parcels North of Hwy
97.

Attachments
Working Case File





Z-2018-08 



R A WHID E

LN

BRICKT O N RD

N HIGHW
AY 95A

M ORGANCEMET ERY RD

BAR TH RD

N B ART H RD

HIGHWAY 97

WARHOPLNO
REO

D
R

MOLINO RD

CO TTO N
L A KE RD

BR
IC

K Y
AR

D
RD

LAKE
HEIGHTS RD

SU
NS

HI
NE

HI
LL

RD

AYER
ST

GIBSON RD

AN
G

US
LN

CE
DAR

SP
R I

NGS RD

MOL INO RD

RO
CK

HI
LL

DR

C HESTNUT
RD

CRABTREECHURCH RD

NI
CH

OL
SO

N
D R

SU
NN

Y
BR

OO
K 

CT

W
ES

LE
Y

CI
R

ABRAM OV
IC

H
LN

IR
ON

RO
CK

 L
N

AB
BO

TT
 L

N

SETT LES RD

BET
RAINES RD

N
HI

GH
W

AY
29

N
H I

GH
W

AY
29

EFFIE RD

SUN SHINERID G E CT

H

I LOT

R L

SO L A
RI

FA R M
RD

SUNCREST
LN

A N GUS
C IR

HO
ME

P L
AC

E
LN

CRABTREE
CHURCH RD

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 3,000 6,000 9,000

Ft

Z-2018-08
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



HIGHWAY
97

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

HIGHWAY
97

SUNSHINE
HIL L RD

SU
N N

Y
BR

OO
K

CT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-08
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SUNSHINE HILL RD



HIGHWAY
97

AG

AG

AG AG

AG

RCAG
AG

AG

HIGHWAY
97

SUNSHINE
HIL L RD

SU
N N

Y
BR

OO
K

CT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-08
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SUNSHINE HILL RD



HIGHWAY
97

HIGHWAY
97

SUNSHINE
HIL L RD

SU
N N

Y
BR

OO
K

CT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-08
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SUNSHINE HILL RD

TIMBER

TIMBER

AGRICULTURE

SFR

SFR

TIMBER

TIMBER

AGRICULTURE
TIMBER

MOB HOME

TIMBER



HIGHWAY
97

HIGHWAY
97

SUNSHINE
HIL L RD

SU
N N

Y
BR

OO
K

CT

PARCELS
USDA_Prime_Soils
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-08
PRIME SOILS

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SUNSHINE HILL RD



HIGHWAY
97

HIGHWAY
97

SUNSHINE
HIL L RD

SU
N N

Y
BR

OO
K

CT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-08
WETLANDS

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SUNSHINE HILL RD



HIGHWAY 97

SUNSHINE
HIL L RD

SU
NN

Y
B R

OO
K

C T

A B
RA

M O
V I

C H
LN

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 750 1,500 2,250

Ft

Z-2018-08
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public hearing sign (second meeting)



Looking East across from property along Hwy 97



Looking Northeast towards property across  Hwy 97



Looking Northwest from property along Hwy 97



Looking Southeast from property along Hwy 97



Looking Southwest from property across Hwy 97



Looking Northeast East across Hwy 97 onto property



Wiley C'Buddy" Page, MPA, APA
Professional Growth Management Services, LLC

5337 Hamilton Lane Pace, Florida 32571
Cell 850.232.9853

budpagel@att.net

May 17, 2018
VIA HAND DELIVERY

Mr. Horace Jones, Director
Department of Growth Management
3363 West Park Avenue

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Dear Mr. Jones:

RE: Rezoning request Ag to RR
Parcel: Portion of 19-3N-31-1100-000-000

& 20-3N-31-1000-000-000

Owner: Bluewater Creek Estates, Inc.
Address: 900 Block Hwy 97 32577

The attached application requests Planning Board consideration to rezone the
referenced property from the existing Ag Agriculture to RR Rural Residential. A com
panion application is being submitted to change the Future Land Use classification
from Ag Agriculture to RC Rural Community.

The property is located within the Molino rural community of the county about
one mile west of the Hwy 97 and Hwy 29 intersection and just north of the recently built

Molino Elementary School and Molino Park.

The application contains the check payable to Escambia County in the amount
of $1,084.00 for the filing fee, proof of ownership, and corporate officer information.

Please contact me if you have any questions or require anything further.
Thank you.

Wiley C'Butidy" Page

LAND USE • ZONING • SITE SELECTION • LITIGATION SUPPORT

















Recorded In Public Records 4/10/2018 3:44 PM OR Book 7882 Page 38f),
Instrument#2018027360, PamChildersClerk of the CircuitCourt Escambia
County, FL Recording S86.50 Deed Stamps S4.042.50

<3? 5n %00>

Q

This Instrument Prepared By:
Victor Haley
Eversheds Sutherland
999 Peochtree Street, NE
Atlantn, GA 30309-3996
Telephone: (404) 853-8000

When recorded return to:

KarenMcClammy
Citizens Title Group
7139-B North 9lhAvenue
Pensacola, FL 32504
Telephone: (850)474-1833

. Recording Fee
VO^.^O Stamps

TOTAL

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

. THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED, made effective as of the /0__ day of
J&pOA 2018, between RMS TIMBERLANDS LLC, aDelaware limited liability
company duly authorized to transact business in the State ofFlorida, whase address is c/o Resource
Management Service, LLC. 31 Inverness Center Parkway, Suite 360, Birmingham. Alabama 35242
("Grantor"), and BLUEWATER CREEK ESTATES, INC., a Florida corporation, whose
address is. 8900 Waring Road, Pensacola, Florida 32534 ("Grantee")

BM-2420 (ID 12140)
401633%.!

























 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 

   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 

  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

   

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: June 6, 2018 

 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-08 

 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-08, 900 Block of Highway 

97, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for July 3, 2018. Please see 
the below comments. 
 

Currently, there are no ongoing or programmed transportation projects on 
Highway 97 within the County’s Capital Improvements Program.  Likewise, there are no 
ongoing or programmed transportation projects on the adjacent segment of US 29 on 
FDOT’s Work Program. 

 
Highway 97 is classified as a minor arterial and has a year 2017 daily volume of 

6,400 vehicles and a posted speed of 55 miles per hour (mph). There is an elementary 
school located near the project on Highway 97.  During drop-off and pick-up times, 
speed is limited to 20mph through the school zone.  The other roadway, in the vicinity, 
of the proposed rezoning is US 29.   US 29, in this area, is classified as a principal 
arterial with a year 2017 daily volume of 7,800 vehicles and a posted speed of 55 mph. 
South of Highway 97 on US 29, there is an FDOT roadway resurfacing and intersection 
improvement project scheduled to begin in the summer of 2019. 
 

TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Juan Lemos, CFM, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 09/04/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-09
APPLICANT: Ronald C. Williams, Owner 

ADDRESS: 1900 Block Tate Rd 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 27-1N-31-0802-002-002
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban  
DISTRICT: 5  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/04/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: LDR, Low Density Residential district (4 du/acre)

TO: LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use district (7 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).
 
CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Category  The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land



Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while
promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land
uses. Range of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services, Professional
Office, Recreational Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum residential density
is twenty five dwelling units per acre.
CPP FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the
efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County will
encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development densities
and intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban, Commercial and
Industrial Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of residential
development). 
CPP FLU 2.1.2 Compact Development. To promote compact development, FLUM
amendments and residential rezonings to allow higher residential densities may be
allowed in the Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) and Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) future land
use categories.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to LDMU is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-S stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The current FLU allows for
residential and non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill development and
the separation of urban and suburban land uses.  The parcel will use the existing roads
and infrastructures.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

LDR, Low Density Residential.
Purpose. The Low Density Residential (LDR) district establishes appropriate areas and
land use regulations for residential uses at low densities within suburban areas. The
primary intent of the district is to provide for large-lot suburban type residential
neighborhood development that blends aspects of rural openness with the benefits of
urban street connectivity, and at greater density than the Rural Residential district.
Residential uses within the LDR district are predominantly detached single-family
dwellings. Clustering dwellings on smaller residential lots may occur where needed to
protect prime farmland from non-agricultural use or to conserve and protect
environmentally sensitive areas. The district allows non-residential uses that are
compatible with suburban residential neighborhoods and the natural resources of the
area. 
LDMU, Low Density Mixed-use
Purpose. The Low Density Mixed-use (LDMU) district establishes appropriate areas and
land use regulations for a complementary mix of low density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within mostly suburban areas. The primary intent of the
district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood-scale retail sales, services and
professional offices with greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density
Residential district. Additionally, the LDMU district is intended to rely on a pattern of
well-connected streets and provide for the separation of suburban uses from more dense



well-connected streets and provide for the separation of suburban uses from more dense
and intense urban uses. Residential uses within the district include most forms of
single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings. 
LDC 3-2.6(e) Location criteria. All new non-residential uses proposed within the LDMU
district that are not part of a predominantly residential development or a planned unit
development, or are not identified as exempt by district regulations, shall be on parcels
that satisfy at least one of the following location criteria:
(1) Proximity to intersection. Along an arterial or collector street, and within 200 feet of
an intersection with another arterial or collector.
(2) Proximity to traffic generator. Along an arterial or collector street and within a
one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more than 600 daily trips,
such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital, or shopping
mall.
(3) Infill development. Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where already
established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with the LDMU district, and
where the new use would constitute infill development of similar intensity as the
conforming development on surrounding parcels. Additionally, the location would
promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip commercial
development.
(4) Site design. Along an arterial street and at the intersection with a local street that
serves to connect the arterial street to another arterial, and all of the following site design
conditions:
a. Any intrusion into a recorded residential subdivision is limited to a corner lot
b. Access and stormwater management is shared with adjoining uses or properties to the
extent practicable.
c. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use (solid waste dumpsters, truck loading/unloading areas,
drive-thru facilities, etc.) furthest from the residential uses.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. LDMU zoning allows for a mix of neighborhood commercial as well
as an increase in density from four dwelling units to seven dwelling units an acre.  The
subject property is adjacent to LDMU and LDR parcels and currently has access from
Tate Rd. The parcel does not meet the locational criteria as it is addressed off a local
roadway, however If the parcel where to be addressed off of Kingsfield Rd, a collector
roadway, the parcel would meet the locational criteria as it is within a quarter of a mile of
Tate High School, a traffic generator. The applicant provided a compatibility analysis and
per the LDC, the Board may waive the locational criteria.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific



residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts LDR
and LDMU. There is an existing business on the corner, which is also owned by the
applicant.  It is there intention to use the subject parcel for his existing business. There
are pre existing business to the west of the subject parcel as well as a high school and a
church within the impacted area. The area is predominately rural in nature with medium
to large size parcels that have the LDR zoning designation, recognizing the fact that this
should not promote a proliferation of commercial activities

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
The requested zoning district would not be considered to be spot zoning as the adjoining
parcels are currently zoned LDMU. Along Tate road, there are residential use properties
and along Kingsfield are some existing neighborhood commercial.

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have not changed due to new developments or land use changes. The
proposed rezoning to LDMU will share the same allowable uses as the adjoining parcels
currently have.



Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-09 



S HIGHW
AY 95A

ST
AL

LI
ON

 R
D

BRE

N TCO
RD

TAT E
SCHOOL RD

IB
IS

TE
R

PAULINE
ST

JE
TE

R
RDW ROBERTS RD

PEL ICANPOINT DR

BASS
AVE MA

JE
ST

IC
DR

KI
NG

S
W

AY
 C

T

S O
U T

HE

R N
OA

KS
D R

CON D OR DR

SOLOMON
CIR

E ROBERTS RD

E KINGSF IELD RD

KI
NG

S
W

AY
DR

KN
IG

HT
CI

R

WARB L
ER

TE
R

TATE RD

W
IN

NE
RS

CI
R

BATSON LN

WINDI NGCREEK C IR

COL T
LN

APPALOOSALN

SIL ASCIR

FILL Y
CT

COLT
L N

LE A R

C T

PI N

E
FO

R E ST
R

D

CO

NDOR DR

PE
AC

E
TE

R

MA
TE

CI
R

PI
ER

CE
RD

PINTO
CIR

PA
CK

W
OO

D 
DR

ZIGLAR R D
SQ

UI
RE

DR

NO
LA

N
FA

LK
NE

R 
CT

POMPANO ST

BR
OO

ME
CI

R

RUSTY L N

RO
BE

RT
S

CI
R

CAR

L A DR

ASPEN LN

KI
NG

ST
RE

E 
DR

ST
AL

LI
ON

 R
D

POMPANO

ST

LI
BR

A 
LN

PO
RT

OB
EL

LA
PL

LA
-L

AR
 L

N

FI
DD

LE
RS

 C
IR

PINEDALE LN

BO
BW

HI
TE

 L
N

TU
TT

LE
 L

N
S HIGHWAY 29

S
HI

GH
W

AY
29

S ILAS C I R
S

HIGHWAY
29

MO
NI

C A
LN

ST
AL

LI
ON

 R
D

H A
MI

LT ON

CROSSING
DR

F ILLY RD

DOL PHIN RD
TA

TE
 R

D

PE
A C

H E
SLN

RE
DF

O R
D

DR

ST
EF

AN
I  R

D

CO

U NT
RY

P LA C E
CI

R

PI
NE

 F
OR

ES
T  

RD

ST
AF

F D
R

ROBERT S
CIR

WINNERSCIR

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-09
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



E KINGSF IELD RD

TA
TE

 R
D

Pub

LDMU

LDMU

LDMU

LDR
LDR

LDR

LDR

LDR

LDR

LDR

E KINGSF IELD RD

BASS
AVE

TA
TE

 R
D

POMPANO ST

TATE
RD

NO
LA

N 
FA

LK
NE

R 
CT

DOLPHIN RD

S HIGHW
AY 29

ASPEN LN
S HIGHW

AY 29

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-09
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



E KINGSF IELD RD

TA
TE

 R
D

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S
MU-S

MU-S
MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

E KINGSF IELD RD

BASS
AVE

TA
TE

 R
D

POMPANO ST

TATE
RD

NO
LA

N 
FA

LK
NE

R 
CT

DOLPHIN RD

S HIGHW
AY 29

ASPEN LN
S HIGHW

AY 29

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-09
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



E KINGSFIELD RD

TA
TE

 R
D

E KINGSFIELD RD

BASS
AVE

TA
TE

 R
D

POMPANO ST

TATE
RD

NO
LA

N 
FA

LK
NE

R 
CT

DOLPHIN RD

S HIGHW
AY 29

ASPEN LN

S HIGHW
AY 29

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

Z-2018-09
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

COM

SF
SF

HIGH SCHOOL
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SFSFSFSFSF

VAC

SF

ECUA SFSF



E KINGSF IELD RD

TA
TE

 R
D

POMPANO ST

TA
TE

 R
D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 100 200 300

Ft

Z-2018-09
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing Sign on Tate Rd



Looking north on Tate Rd



Looking onto a portion of 
property from drive on Tate Rd



Looking from subject 
parcel across Tate Rd



Looking south along Tate 
from subject parcel access



Looking across Tate Rd 
from subject parcel



Public Hearing sign on 
Kingsfield Rd



Looking onto subject 
parcel from Kingsfield



Looking south across 
Kingsfield Rd from 

subject parcel



Looking southwest 
along Kingsfield Rd



Looking at adjoining 
parcel to west along 

Kingsfield Rd



Looking east along 
Kingsfield Rd



LastUpdated: 10/6/17-Rezoning 

Escambia County Planning and Zoning 
Development Services Department
 

3363 West Park Place
 

Pensacola, FL 32505
 

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481
 

http://mvescambia.com/business/ds
 

Rezoning Application g/ . 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number^-c^/fr-ffi Accepted by: PB Meeting: '7//^ 

1.	 Contact Information: 

A.	 Property Owner/Applicant: Rpft^AU) 6 W\Uy\/^fAS 
Mailing Address: P'O . Y)i^ C^lA 
Business Phone: 350-96S-flf3*7 Cell: 4<?0'3<%D-WC(l(' 
Email: CA,[\cl(^(3M(wti,\ftrf 

B.	 Authorized Agent (if applicable): 

Mailing Address: 

Business Phone:	 Cell: 

Email: 

Note: Ownermust complete the attachedAgentAffidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must 

completeanAgentAffidavit. Application willbe voided if changes to thisapplication arefound. 

2.	 Property Information: 

A.	 Existing Street Address: \(\0° ~IAT^ |2JV 
Parcel ID (s): T?-)N~~5>\- O^O^X-ft Q7_- QO 1^ 

B.	 Total acreage ofthe subject property: J/foP f\0 

C.	 Existing Zoning: LPK 

Proposed Zoning: M?M M :explain why necessary and/or appropriate 

FLU Category: MU-J? 

2

http://mvescambia.com/business/ds


















 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Manager 

   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 

  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

   

THRU: David Forte, Manager 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: August 27, 2018 

 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-09 

 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-09, 1900 Tate Road, 

agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for September 4, 2018. 
Please see the below comments. 
 Tate Road is a two-lane road without shoulders or sidewalks.  The 
pavement width is approximately 22 feet. Right of Way on Tate Road varies from 
60 to 65 feet.  JM Tate Senior High School is located about 0.25 miles from the 
subject property.  There are six back-out residential driveways on Tate Road 
between the subject property and the school. 

Currently, there are no ongoing or programmed projects for Tate Road on 
the County’s Capital Improvements Program or FDOT’s Work Program. 

Tate Road is classified as a local street and assumed to be functioning 
within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes. As of 2017, Tate Road south of 
Kingsfield Road had 1,800 daily vehicles.   

TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 

 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Allyson Cain, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. C.           
Meeting Date: 09/04/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-11
APPLICANT: Gilbert Nelson, Owner 

ADDRESS: Dogwood Place 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 34-2S-30-0040-010-003
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban  
DISTRICT: 3  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: Brownsville 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/04/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)

TO: Com, Commercial district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development and
redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM). 
CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future
Land Use (FLU) category is intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses



while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban
land uses. Range of allowable uses include: Residential, Retail and Services,
Professional Office, Recreational Facilities, Public and Civic. The maximum residential
density is twenty five dwelling units per acre.
FLU 1.1.9 Buffering. In the LDC, Escambia County shall ensure the compatibility of
adjacent land uses by requiring buffers designed to protect lower intensity uses from
more intensive uses, such as residential from commercial. Buffers shall also be used to
protect agricultural activities from the disruptive impacts of nonagricultural land uses and
protect nonagricultural uses from normal agricultural activities. 

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to Com is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-S as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The Comprehensive Plan allows
for a mix of residential and commercial uses to include recreational facilities.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

LDC Sect. 3-2.9 HDMU
Purpose. The High Density Mixed-use (HDMU) district establishes appropriate areas and
land use regulations for a complimentary mix of high density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to
provide for a mix of neighborhood retail sales, services and professional offices with
greater dwelling unit density and intensity than the Low Density Mixed-use district.
Additionally, the HDMU district is intended to rely on urban street connectivity and
encourage vertical mixes of commercial and residential uses within the same building to
accommodate a physical pattern of development characteristic of village main streets
and older neighborhood commercial areas. Residential uses within the district include all
forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.
LDC Sect. 3-2.10 Com
Purpose. The Commercial (Com) district establishes appropriate areas and land use
regulations for general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and
services. The primary intent of the district is to allow more diverse and intense
commercial uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the mixed-use
districts. To maintain compatibility with surrounding uses, all commercial operations
within the Commercial district are limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed to
produce undesirable effects on surrounding property. To retain adequate area for
commercial activities, new and expanded residential development within the district is
limited, consistent with the Commercial (C) future land use category. 
Sec. 3-3.4     Brownsville Overlay (Brn-OL).
Purpose.  The Brownsville Overlay (Brn-OL) district establishes supplemental land use
regulations to support the objectives of the adopted Brownsville area community
redevelopment plan.  The intent of the additional land use controls is to enhance the
character of an area undergoing revitalization, support existing commercial corridors,
and protect the unique and historic character of the Brownsville community.
LDC 3-2.10 Location criteria.  All new non-residential uses proposed within the



Commercial district that are not part of a planned unit development or not identified as
exempt by the district shall be on parcels that satisfy at least one of the following location
criteria:
(1) Proximity to intersection.  Along an arterial or collector street and within one-quarter
mile of its intersection with an arterial street.
(2) Proximity to traffic generator.  Along an arterial or collector street and within a
one-quarter mile radius of an individual traffic generator of more than 600 daily trips,
such as an apartment complex, military base, college campus, hospital, shopping mall or
similar generator.
(3) Infill development.  Along an arterial or collector street, in an area where already
established non-residential uses are otherwise consistent with the Commercial district,
and where the new use would constitute infill development of similar intensity as the
conforming development on surrounding parcels.  Additionally, the location would
promote compact development and not contribute to or promote strip commercial
development.
(4) Site design.  Along an arterial or collector street, no more than one-half mile from its
intersection with an arterial or collector street, not abutting a single-family residential
zoning district (RR, LDR or MDR), and all of the following site design conditions:
a. Any Intrusion into a recorded subdivision is limited to a corner lot.
b. A system of service roads or shared access is provided to the maximum extent made
feasible by lot area, shape, ownership patterns, and site and street characteristics.
c. Adverse impacts to any adjoining residential uses are minimized by placing the more
intensive elements of the use, such as solid waste dumpsters and truck
loading/unloading areas, furthest from the residential uses.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The Commercial zoning designation allows for more intense
commercial uses than the current HDMU, neighborhood commercial. The parcel is within
the Brownsville redevelopment area which strives to enhance the character of the area
and supporting existing commercial corridors. Although the parcel is within 1/4 mile of an
intersection with an arterial street, the parcel fronts a local road and not an arterial or
collector as mandated by the criteria. The parcel can not be accessed from Mobile
Highway or New Warrington Rd due to the connecting ramp from Mobile Highway to New
Warrington Rd., which will be evaluated by Traffic and Transportation, Access
management.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS



FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is not compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500' radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts HDMU
and Com. It is recognized that there are commercial zoning categories across Dogwood
and Mobile Highway although both are not within line of sight as well as being separated
by a divided roadway.  The proposed parcel is adjacent to an existing apartment
complex, therefore it would allow for intense commercial uses with the potential to create
adverse impacts on the existing residential development.

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
The request to rezone to Commercial is spot zoning due to the adjacent parcels currently
zoned HDMU, with commercial zoning across Dogwood to the south. There are
commercial properties to the south, west and across New Warrington Road is an HC/LI
zoned parcel. 

Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have not changed in uses or intensities. The  parcel is not along an arterial or
collector street, in an area where already established non-residential uses are otherwise
consistent with the Commercial district, and where the new use would constitute infill
development of similar intensity as the conforming development on surrounding parcels.



Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-11 



MA
T T

HE
W

LN

W AVERY ST

S MADISON DR
BR

UC
E 

ST

N NEW

WARRINGTON RD

NEW WARRINGTON

SPUR

VASSAR DR

RUBYAVE
W FAIR FIELD D R

LILL IAN HWY

LY
NC

H
STMARTHA AVE

N
50

T H
A VE

CHEROKEE
TRL

BO
RD

ER
 S

T

W LEE ST

GAR FIEL D DR

EM
ER

AL
D

AV
E

DOGW
OOD

PL

UTAH CT

G A
RY

AV
E

W LLOYD ST

N
48

T H
AV

E

N
OL

D
CO

RR
Y

FI
EL

D
RD

N 
50

TH
 A

VE

GA IL DR

LIMEST

L IME
ST

HAVEN
CT

GR
AN

DV
I E

W
ST

W GONZAL EZ ST

IDAHO CT

N
46

T H
A V

E

BA
LL

AR
D

ST

W DESOTO ST

LA
RR

Y
AV

EPEN HAVEN DR

OLD

FAIR FIELD D R

WABASH AVE

M OBILEH WY

NEW
YORK DR

CI
TR

US
 S

T

GL
EN

W
O O

D
A V

E

N
49

T H
A V

E

ANTHONYST

EM ORY DR

VANDERBILT
RD

MISS
ISSIPP I

CIR W SCOT T ST

EDISON DR

GA
RY

CI
R

CAREY
AVE

GEOR GIA DR

N
46

TH
AV

E

JAMES ST

MIGNON
CT

SI
MO

N 
CT

BA
NC

RO
FT

DR

W CERVANTES ST

W BLOUNT ST

W BOBE ST

W MORENO ST

ALETHIASTYORKSHIRE
AVE

KINNEAR
AVE

OA
KW

O O
D

AV
E

N 
Z 

STPE NNSYLVANIA

DR

TALLAD
EGA

TR
L

T O P AZ

A V E

HO
LL

YW

OO D
AV

E

N O TT
IN

GH A M
WA

Y
NEW

M
E X ICO DR

STATE ST

N
48

TH
A V

E

N
47

T H
A V

E

L IL LIAN HWY

NOR W O OD DR

FI
RE

MA
N 

DR

MARTHA
AVE

W
FA

IRF IELD DR

EL SA AVE

MOBILE

HWY
W BRAINERD ST

N
NE

W
W

AR
RI

NG
TO

N
R D

WYOMING ST
TENNES S EE DR

W M ALLORY ST

HA

LE

ST

JOHN
ST

BONIFAY PL

DO
M I

NG
UE

Z
S T

NE
VADA

CIR

IVY LN

LUKE ST

W HERNANDEZST

NEW
WARRINGTON SPUR

W YONGE ST

W M AXWELL  ST
W J ORDAN ST

W BOBE
ST

W GADSDEN ST

W FAIRFIEL D
DR

TO
MA

HA
W

K
TR

L

TULIP  DR

LILL IAN
HW Y

DOGWOOD DR

ST
ET

SON

RD

TONAWANDA DR

MOB IL EH WY

ALICE S T

STATE ST
W THE R E S AS T

EMORY DR

BE
RT

R A

M ST

AQ UAMARIN E

AV
E

WEBB LN

MARTHAAVE

SEMINOLE
TRL

PERDIDO ST

MOHAW K TRL

SIOUX TRL

OP
AL

AV
E

BE S MA DR

STRE
G I S DR

NE
W

W
AR

RI
NG

TO
N

SP
UR

RANDOL PH D R

GARY
CIRWE STOVERAVE

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-11
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Com

HC/LI HC/LI

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

Com
Com HC/LI

Com

MDR

Com

Com
WESTO V ER

AVE

MOBILE

HWY

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

BO
RD

ER
ST

B RAV EHEARTCIR

LIME ST

LIME ST

BONIFAY P

L

PEN
HAVEN D R

VIADUCTLN

W HE RNA N D EZ ST

VALIANT
AVE

PA UL S T

GL
EN

W
OO

D 
AV

E

N NEW

WARRINGTON RD

NO R W OOD DR

CLOVERLAND
CT

LI
ME

 S
T

MOBILE HWY

MOBILE HWY

W FAIRFIE LD DR

BONIFAY PL

DOGWOOD DR

NEW WARRINGTONSPUR

NEW
W

ARRINGTON

SPU R

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2018-11
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

NEW WARRINGTO
N SPUR

WEBB LN

DOGWOOD PL



C

C C
C

MU-S
C

C

MU-S

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U
WESTO V ER

AVE

MOBILE

HWY

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

BO
RD

ER
ST

B RAV EHEARTCIR

LIME ST

LIME ST

BONIFAY P

L

PEN
HAVEN D R

VIADUCTLN

W HE RNA N D EZ ST

VALIANT
AVE

PA UL S T

GL
EN

W
OO

D 
AV

E

N NEW

WARRINGTON RD

NO R W OOD DR

CLOVERLAND
CT

LI
ME

 S
T

MOBILE HWY

MOBILE HWY

W FAIRFIE LD DR

BONIFAY PL

DOGWOOD DR

NEW WARRINGTONSPUR

NEW
W

ARRINGTON

SPU R

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2018-11
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

NEW WARRINGTO
N SPUR

WEBB LN

DOGWOOD PL



WESTO V ER

AVE

MOBILE

HWY

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

BO
RD

ER
ST

BRAVEHEARTCIR

LIME ST

LIME ST

BONIFAY P

L

PEN
HAVEN D R

VIADUCTLN

W HERNAND EZ ST

VALIANT
AVE

PAUL ST

GL
EN

W
OO

D 
AV

E

N NEW

WARRINGTON RD

NOR W OOD DR

CLOVERLAND
CT

LI
ME

 S
T

MOBILE HWY

MOBILE HWY

W FAIRFIELD DR

BONIFAY PL

DOGWOOD DR

NE
W WARRINGTONSPUR

NEW
W

ARRINGTON

SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2018-11
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

NEW WARRINGTO
N SPUR

WEBB LN

DOGWOOD PL

MOTEL

MOTEL

APARTMENTS

COMMERCIAL

VAC

LOWES

MH

SF
SF

SF

SF

VAC

VACVAC



BONIFAY PL

DO GWOO D PL

BO
RD

ER
 S

T

MOBILE
HWY

NEW W
ARRINGTON SPUR

DOGWOO D

PL

MOBILE HWY

LIME ST

PA UL ST

LI
ME

 S
T

M OBILEH WY

NEW W
ARRINGTON SPUR

DOGWOOD DR

WEBB LN

NE
W

WARR IN
GTO

N

SPUR

NEW WARRINGTONSPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 250 500 750

Ft

Z-2018-11
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



BROWNSVILLE

BROWNSVILLE

BROWNSVILLE

ENGLEWOOD

BROWNSVILLE

WESTO V ER

AVE

MOBILE

HWY

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

NEW

WARRINGTON

SPUR

BO
RD

ER
ST

B RAV EHEARTCIR

LIME ST

LIME ST

BONIFAY P

L

PEN
HAVEN D R

VIADUCTLN

W HE RNA N D EZ ST

VALIANT
AVE

PA UL S T

GL
EN

W
OO

D 
AV

E

N NEW

WARRINGTON RD

NO R W OOD DR

CLOVERLAND
CT

LI
ME

 S
T

MOBILE HWY

MOBILE HWY

W FAIRFIE LD DR

BONIFAY PL

DOGWOOD DR

NEW WARRINGTONSPUR

NEW
W

ARRINGTON

SPU R

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
RAILROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

Z-2018-11
CRA MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

NEW WARRINGTO
N SPUR

WEBB LN

DOGWOOD PL



Public Hearing Sign on backside of 
property; along on ramp



Looking east along spur



Public Hearing sign posted on 
Dogwood



Looking west along Dogwood; 
parcel on right



Looking west along Dogwood 
   





At Dogwood intersection



Looking west along Dogwood;
Drive to apartments on left



Last Updated: 10/6/17-Rezoning

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http7/mvescambia.com/business/ds

Rezoning Application ajtfiifl ,
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number: ?'«M?'// Accepted by: (jttjj^fo Meeting: yHf^lt

A. Property Owner/Applicant: gtlWA JT &CUCJ ^V\^ U*^£flqdgj£._)
Mailing Address: (o Olip p-Qre^t" dnT^Q-fl APcitl 33gQ!?~~
Business Phone: (\\)V Cell: ftSO'SSH- !z3l O
Email: ^ \V>^>fV g^WAs^ @JVVV . A^T

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): t V V*"«

Mailing Address:

Business Phone: Cell:

Email:

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete an Agent Affidavit. Application will be voided if changes to this application are found.

2. Property Information: ^J> O0a\0 o O A^^V) tf~ .

A. Existing Street Address: A^y\e_^ CL4-&'\ e\v\e L~f\^M^P£>>) YA

Qju&ft- o"r- Oo^Vp-g&O
B. Total acreage of the subject property: \ i \

C. Existing Zoning: Vv^^V^
Proposed Zoning^_CWVtvnefC-i<^; explain why necessary and/or appropriate

\^ka.CL^a^u^L0 «, ~l— U)cwA" Vq CO-^ ^VkD^VUU^
tWs^,

FLU Category: fYvNA"^

-2-

1. Contact Information:

























 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
August 6, 2018 
 
Horace Jones, Director 
Escambia County Planning & Zoning Division 
3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL 32505 
 
SUBJECT: REZONING REQUEST FOR THE FOLLOWING: 
 PARCEL# 34-2S-30-0040-010-003 FROM HDMU TO COMM 
 ADDRESS: DOGWOOD DRIVE 
 
Horace, 
 
I have reviewed the Rezoning Request package for the abovementioned location and my comments are 
below: 
 
Sec. 3-3.4 (Brownsville Overlay)  

(e) Site and building requirements.  
The following site and building requirements apply only to non-residential uses within the 
Brn-OL district:  
(1) Structure height.. No structure height shall exceed 45 feet above highest adjacent 
grade. Any lower height required by use or underlying zoning district shall govern. 
(2) Materials and detailing. New structures, additions, and renovations shall use materials 
and detailing that maintain the distinct character and harmony of the redevelopment 
district. Vinyl or metal siding is prohibited on the primary facades of buildings adjacent to 
public rights-of-way. Accessory structures shall use the same or similar materials, color, 
and style of the primary structure’s façade if visible from a public way.  
(3) Setbacks. New construction along Mobile Highway or Cervantes Street shall be set 
back a distance similar to that of adjacent buildings unless customer parking is provided 
adjacent to the street in support of CPTED principles. Exceptions may be granted if the 
setback is pedestrian oriented and contributes to the quality and character of the streetscape.  
(4) Facades. a. Front facades. Front building facades more than 80 feet in width shall be 
divided into increments by changes in materials, bay windows, wall offsets, or similar 
methods. b. Rear façade. A minimum of 15 feet of a building’s rear façade facing a public 
right of way, parking area, or open space shall consist of transparent materials, not 
including reflective glass.  
(5) Natural features. Natural features shall be protected and integrated into site design 
and development where possible.  

221 Palafox Place • Pensacola, Florida 32502 

Tonya Gant, Director 
Neighborhood & Human Services Department 

Clara Long, Division Manager 
Community Redevelopment Agency 

850.595.4988 • www.myescambia.com 



(6) Signs. Site signage is limited to one freestanding monument sign per development 
parcel, scaled primarily for pedestrians, and not to exceed 100 square feet in area and 12 
feet in height, except for multi-tenant development where the sign may be up to 300 square 
feet. Sign colors, materials, and lighting shall avoid adverse visual impacts on surrounding 
properties. Wall signs shall not obstruct design details, windows, or cornices of the
buildings to which they are attached. For individual tenants in a multi-tenant development, 
wall signs shall not exceed 20 square feet per sign.  
(7) Lighting. Lighting should serve to illuminate facades, entrances, and signage to provide 
an adequate level of personal safety while enhancing the aesthetic Supp 1 LDC 3:71 appeal 
of the buildings. Building and signage lighting must be indirect, with the light source 
hidden from direct pedestrian and motorist view.  
(8) Parking. Off-street parking shall be located in the rear. If the lot orientation cannot 
accommodate adequate rear parking, parking may be located on the side. 

 
 The purpose of the Brownsville Overlay district establishes supplemental land use regulations to 
support the objectives of the adopted Brownsville area community redevelopment plan.  The intent 
of the additional land use controls is to enhance the character of an area undergoing revitalization 
and support a mix of commercial, industrial, and residential uses within the Brownsville area. 

 

Both the Brownsville Overlay and the Brownsville Area Community Redevelopment Plan does not address 
rezoning nor RV Parks. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me at 850-595-3596. 

Sincerely, 

Clara Long, CRA Division Manager 
 

 



 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Manager 

   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner  

  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

   

THRU: David Forte, Manager 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: August 27, 2018 

 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-11 

 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-11, Dogwood Place (34-

25-30-0040-010-003), agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for 
September 4, 2018. Please see the below comments. 
 Dogwood Place is a narrow two-lane road that provides access to a large 
apartment complex. Pavement width is approximately 15 feet with a ROW of 33 
feet.  The property is in the southeast quadrant of the Mobile Highway 
interchange with New Warrington Spur although the property only has indirect 
access to Mobile Highway.  This indirect access accomplished via a 90 degree 
turn onto another local Road, Webb Lane. 

There are no ongoing or programmed projects for Dogwood Place or Webb 
Lane on the County’s Capital Improvements Program or FDOT’s Work Program. 

Dogwood Place and Webb lane are classified as local streets and assumed 
to be functioning within their allowable capacity for traffic volumes. There is no 
available daily traffic volume data for Dogwood Place or Webb Lane.   

TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process. 
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 

 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Allyson Cain, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. D.           
Meeting Date: 09/04/2018  
CASE : Z-2018-13
APPLICANT: Robert O. Beasley, Agent for Crosby Holdings, LLC., Owner 

ADDRESS: 2335 Klinger Street 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 18-1S-30-1201-005-005
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
DISTRICT: 4  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: Atwood 

BCC MEETING DATE: 10/04/2018 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: MDR, Medium Density Residential district (10 du/acre)

TO: HDMU, High Density Mixed-use district (25 du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

APPROVAL CONDITIONS

Criterion a., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
The proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed
in LDC Chapter 3, and with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the
Comprehensive Plan.  If the rezoning is required to properly enact a proposed FLU map
amendment transmitted for state agency review, the proposed zoning is consistent with
the proposed FLU and conditional to its adoption.

FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. General descriptions, range of allowable uses,
and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land use categories
in Escambia County are outlined below.
FLU 1.5.1 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote the efficient
use of existing public roads, utilities, and service infrastructure, the County will



encourage the redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the MU-S, MU-U, Commercial, and Industrial Future
Land Use categories (with the exception of residential development).

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment to HDMU is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-U as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The MU-U FLU is intended for an
intense mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses within the category as
a whole. The listed Range of Allowable Uses includes residential, retail and services,
professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public, civic and limited
agriculture. The amendment is also consistent with the intent of FLU 1.5.1, by making
use of the existing public roads and the availability of utilities and service infrastructure.

Criterion b., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Consistent with The Land Development Code
The proposed zoning is consistent with the purpose and intent and with any other zoning
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.

Sec. 3-2.7 Medium Density Residential district (MDR).
(a) Purpose. The Medium Density Residential (MDR) district establishes appropriate
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within suburban
or urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to provide for residential
neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at
greater dwelling unit density than the Low Density Residential district. Residential uses
within the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family dwellings. The district
allows non-residential uses that are compatible with suburban and urban residential
neighborhoods.

Sec. 3-2.9 High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU).
(a) Purpose. The High Density Mixed-use (HDMU) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for a complimentary mix of high density residential uses and
compatible non-residential uses within urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to
provide for a mix of neighborhood retail sales, services and professional offices with
greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density Mixed-use district.
Additionally, the HDMU district is intended to rely on urban street connectivity and
encourage vertical mixes of commercial and residential uses within the same building to
accommodate a physical pattern of development characteristic of village main streets
and older neighborhood commercial areas. Residential uses within the district include all
forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.
(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the HDMU district are limited to the following:
     (1) Residential. The following residential uses are allowed throughout the district, but
if within a Commercial (C) future land use category they are permitted only if part of a
predominantly commercial development.
          a. Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity and sorority houses, and
residential facilities providing substance abuse treatment,                      post-incarceration
reentry, or similar services.
          b. Manufactured (mobile) homes, including manufactured home subdivisions, but



          b. Manufactured (mobile) homes, including manufactured home subdivisions, but
excluding new or expanded manufactured home parks.
          c. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached or attached,
including townhouses and zero lot line subdivisions.
          d. Two-family and multi-family dwellings.
        See also conditional uses in this district.
   (2) Retail sales. Small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per lot) retail sales,
including Low-THC marijuana dispensing facilities,   sales of beer and wine, but
excluding sales of liquor, automotive fuels, or motor vehicles, and excluding permanent
outdoor storage,        display, or sales. See also conditional uses in this district.
   (3) Retail services. The following small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per
lot) retail services, excluding outdoor work or permanent outdoor storage:
        a. Bed and breakfast inns.
        b. Boarding and rooming houses.
        c. Child care facilities.
        d. Personal services, including those of beauty shops, health clubs, pet groomers,
dry cleaners, and tattoo parlors.
        e. Professional services, including those of realtors, bankers, accountants,
engineers, architects, dentists, physicians, and attorneys.
        f. Repair services, including appliance repair, furniture refinishing and upholstery,
watch and jewelry repair, small engine and motor                     services, but excluding
major motor vehicle or boat service or repair.
        g. Restaurants, and brewpubs, including on-premises consumption of alcoholic
beverages, but excluding drive-in or drive-through       service and brewpubs with
distribution of alcoholic beverages for off-site sales.
See also conditional uses in this district.
   (4) Public and civic.
        a. Preschools and kindergartens.
        b. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, fire fighting, and medical
assistance.
        c. Foster care facilities.
        d. Places of worship.
        e. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers.
See also conditional uses in this district.
    (5) Recreation and entertainment.
         a. Marinas, private only.
         b. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
See also conditional uses in this district.
    (6) Industrial and related. No industrial or related uses.
    (7) Agricultural and related. Agricultural production limited to food primarily for
personal consumption by the producer, but no farm        animals.
    (8) Other uses. [Reserved]
(c) Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, the
BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the HDMU district:
     (1) Residential.
          a. Dormitories.
          b. Fraternity and sorority houses.
          c. Manufactured (mobile) home parks.



      (2) Retail sales. Medium-scale (gross floor area greater than 6000 sq.ft. per lot, but
no greater than 35,000 sq.ft.) retail sales, including sales of beer and wine and
automotive fuels, but excluding sales of motor vehicles and liquor, and excluding
permanent outdoor storage, display, or sales.
       (3) Retail services.
          a. Medium-scale (gross floor area greater than 6000 sq. ft. per lot, but no greater
than 35,000 sq. ft.) retail services, excluding motor                vehicle service and repair.
          b. Restaurants and brewpubs with drive-in or drive-through service and brewpubs
with the distribution of on-premises produced
          alcoholic beverages for off-site sales.
          c. Small-scale (gross floor area 6000 sq.ft. or less per lot) major motor vehicle
service and repair, excluding painting or body work and
          outdoor work.
      (4) Public and civic.
            a. Broadcast stations with satellite dishes and antennas, excluding towers.
            b. Cemeteries, including family cemeteries.
            c. Clubs, civic and fraternal.
            d. Community service facilities, including auditoriums, libraries, museums, and
neighborhood centers.
            e. Cinerators.
            f. Educational facilities not among the permitted uses of the district.
            g. Funeral establishments.
            h. Hospitals.
             i. Offices for government agencies or public utilities.
             j. Public utility structures exceeding the district structure height limit and
telecommunications towers of any height, excluding any        industrial uses.
             k. Warehousing or maintenance facilities for government agencies or public
utilities.
       (5) Recreation and entertainment.
            a. Amusement arcade centers and bingo facilities.
            b. Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active outdoor
recreational facilities, including associated country clubs.
            c. Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.
      (6) Industrial and related. Microbreweries, microdistilleries, and microwineries
      (7) Agricultural and related.
           a. Horses or other domesticated equines kept on site, and stables for such
animals, only as a private residential accessory with a  minimum lot area of two acres
and a maximum of one animal per acre.
           b. Veterinary clinics.
     (8) Other uses.
          a. Self-storage facilities with a maximum lot area of one acre and outdoor storage
limited to operable motor vehicles and boats. No   vehicle rental.
          b. Structures of permitted uses exceeding the district structure height limit,
excluding telecommunications towers.

FINDINGS
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The proposed High Density Mixed-use zoning may be established



only within the Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S), Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U), or Commercial
(C) future land use categories. The district is suitable for areas where the intermixing of
uses has been the custom, where future uses are uncertain, and some redevelopment is
probable. The district is appropriate to provide transitions between areas zoned or used
for medium or high density residential and areas zoned or used for commercial.

Criterion c., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Compatible with surrounding uses
All the permitted uses of the proposed zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning
applicant, are compatible, as defined in Chapter 6, with the surrounding uses.  The uses
of any surrounding undeveloped land shall be considered the permitted uses of the
applicable district. Compatibility is not considered with potential conditional uses or with
any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing the compatibility of a
residential use, there is no additional burden to demonstrate the compatibility of specific
residents or activities protected by fair housing law.

FINDINGS
The applicant has provided a compatibility analysis for the record. The proposed
amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. Within the 500
radius area, staff observed properties with zoning districts Commercial, HDMU and
MDR. Thirty-six single family residences, one vacant commercial, one multi-family
residential, one professional building, one fire station, one hospital parking lot, seven
vacant residential properties.  

Criterion d., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate if spot zoning
Where the proposed zoning would establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as
defined in Chapter 6, the isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character
between the adjoining districts, or the differences with those districts would be minor or
sufficiently limited.  The extent of these mitigating characteristics or conditions
demonstrates an appropriate site specific balancing of interests between the isolated
district and adjoining lands.
As per LDC Chapter 6, Spot Zoning is: Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its
size, that is different from the zoning of all contiguous land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is
usually higher in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore,
extend privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot zoning is
not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on adjoining zoning it carries a
higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will contribute to or result in logical and
orderly development.

FINDINGS
Based on staff's research of aerial photographs, the commercial building has existed on
the site since at least 1999. Review of Escambia County public records shows the
structure on-site was built in 1975 and the current taxing label for the property is office. If
approved the zoning would be transitional in character between the adjoining districts,
and the differences with those districts would be minor. The existing parcel size and
location would limit the potential allowed uses under the proposed zoning district.  



Criterion e., LDC Sec. 2-7.2(b)(4)
Appropriate with changed or changing conditions
If the land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed, the changes are to such a degree and character that it is in the
public interest to allow new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning; and
the permitted uses of the proposed district are appropriate and not premature for the
area or likely to create or contribute to sprawl.

FINDINGS
The land uses or development conditions within the area surrounding the property of
rezoning have changed. Although the parcel is part of a platted subdivision, Klinger with
an approval date of 1939, multiple external lots of the subdivision along Davis Hwy, Berg
Road and Beal Road currently house commercial uses and intensities. The current
request does support the transitional character, uses and intensities of the surrounding
areas.

Attachments
Working Case File



Z-2018-13 



K I
NGS

W OO
D

CT

E JOHNSON AVE

N
DA

VI
S

HW
Y

UN
I V

ER
SI

T Y
P K

W
Y

CE

DARW O ODVILLA G E LN

GO V ERNORS DR
CR

EE
KSIDE
CT

INTERSTATE 1 0

INT ERSTATE110 RAMPD

INTERSTATE
10 RAMP B INT ERSTAT E 10

EC
LI

PS
E

LN

GR
EG

G 
RD

MI
LL

ST
RE

AM
DR

E OLIVE  RD

KI
PL

IN
G 

ST

TI
PP

IN
 A

VE

T R
EE

TO
P

LN

CO N STI T UTION PL

KL INGER ST
N D

AVIS H
WY

E
O

L IVE

R D

NORTHCROSS
L N

CHALET

PL

W
HI

TM
IR

E 
DR

I N T ERS TATE10 RAMP

MCLEAN AVE

BLACKWELL LN

CH
AP

PE
RA

L
DR

BU
TL

ER
LN

RA INES ST

AT
W

OO
D

DR

BELL E

MEADO W

BL
VD

ATWOOD DR DES
E RT

OAK
DR

PIN
OAK CT

ACORNL N NOL A
AV E

SU
ZA

NN
E

LNPARAZINE S T

ERWIN DR

EV
ER

ET
T 

AV
E

FRANK ST

BERG ST
FORSYTH

STF AIRBURNST

DESERT ST

MA
RL

OW
 S

T

FRAZIER ST

DORA ST

CHART ER

OAKS
DR

GLEN
EDEN DR

HONEYW OOD
DR

CHICKERING
RD

WESTVIEW L N

OAK
L EAF

CT

WILSONREAVES LN

KIPLING ST RA
IN ES

CT

S P
HERE

WAY

PANDORA PL

SHOAL
CREEK DR

UNIVERS I TY
PKW

Y

GI
FT

 D
R

LA
W

TO
N 

ST

AT WOOD DR
DESERT

ST

LEGION ST

WARRENJERNIGAN
P L

CA
MI

NI
TT

I L
N

BLUE
STAR DR

LEWIS ST

PLANTAT ION RD

LADD DR
LI

LA
C 

LN

COUNTRY

W ALK
DR

BROOKLYN ST

YA
NC

EY
 A

VE

SA
BR

A 
DR

ABBIE LN

PA
UL

 S
TA

RR
 D

R

INT ERST AT E10 RAMP F 2

CA
RL

 D
EA

N 
ST

KI
PL

IN
G 

ST

EL
Y 

RD

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

Z-2018-13
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



BERG ST

NE
LS

ON
 S

T

Com

Com

Com

MDR

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

HDMU

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

E JOHNSON AVE

KLINGER ST

NE
LS

ON
 S

T

BI
NK

LE
Y 

ST

BE
AL

 S
T

BERG ST

FORSYTH ST

N D
AVIS H

WY

FAIRBURN ST

FA
IT

H
LN

LA
W

TO
N 

ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2018-13
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



BERG ST

NE
LS

ON
 S

T

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

E JOHNSON AVE

KLINGER ST

NE
LS

ON
 S

T

BI
NK

LE
Y 

ST

BE
AL

 S
T

BERG ST

FORSYTH ST

N D
AVIS H

WY

FAIRBURN ST

FA
IT

H
LN

LA
W

TO
N 

ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2018-13
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



BERG ST

NE
LS

ON
 S

T

E JOHNSON AVE

KLINGER ST

NE
LS

ON
 S

T

BI
NK

LE
Y 

ST

BE
AL

 S
T

BERG ST

FORSYTH ST

N D
AVIS H

WY

FAIRBURN ST

FA
IT

H
LN

LA
W

TO
N 

ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

Z-2018-13
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFRSFR

SFR

SFR SFR

SFR

SFR

SFRSFR

SFR

SFR
SFR

SFRSFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFR

SFRSFRSFR

HOSPITAL PARKING

FIRE STATION

PROF
BLDG

VAC
COM

VAC
RES

SFR

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

VAC
RES

MULTIFAM
RES

VAC
RES

STORMWATER
ESC COUNTY

MISC
RESIDENTIAL



KLINGER ST

BERG ST

BINKLEY
ST

FA
IT

H 
LN

NE
L S

ON
S T

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 100 200 300

Ft

Z-2018-13
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public hearing signs
Public Hearing Sign on Klinger



Public Hearing Sign on Binkley



Looking East on Klinger



Looking West from property along Klinger



Looking North from property across Klinger



Looking South from property along Binkley



Looking West across Binkley onto property



Looking South onto property from Klinger



Last Updated: 10/6/17-Rezoning

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http://myescambia.com/business/ds

Rezoning Application cw ,
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number:?-j^aFWi__ Accepted by: 4 Ca^ PB Meeting: '('^

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: Cjoslxj noldlr\r,< fl~U2-
Mailing Address: ggSg (4uy jl ; gjflM^ p£ 7^5'7^
Business Phone: Cell: S^O ' ggjfc^jj

Email: mcro.sfy 1IC- (Q^ma' /. Cd>rn
B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): Rffkerf Q. Bessfey

Mailing Address: Z16> /^. C-x>v e-rr\f(\&\l S+. ^ V}~nsaCol4, &£. "ZtJ?0'*-

Business Phone: &"f~0-H3Z,~ %tj%_ Cell:
Email: Pok QL |̂Oen $cCo k.a>^ ^ dc1qH< g? lq\APen ScCda. co^
Note: Owner mustcomplete theattachedAgentAffidavit. Ifthereis morethanone owner, each ownermust

complete an AgentAffidavit. Application willbe voidedif changes to this application arefound.

2. Property Information:

A. Existing Street Address: 2^335" \^^n^<zs &-h. , VchS&CoIc f &• 3^^
Parcel ID (s): 19 - \S^lO~\7jQ\ - 00^' QO^

B. Total acreage ofthe subject property: Cx» *-&

C. Existing Zoning: Hy^

Proposed Zoning: /pPMA ;explain why necessary and/or appropriate
tjr u*£. 6£ Qprofessional g^. A ^cgjgJSJUDgJ

fefcllj 1/ fl previous o\A*eS.
FLU Category:

-2-













COMPATIBILITY 

The subject parcel is currently zoned MDR but a professional office building exists on the parcel.   
Although on a local road, the parcel is within a quarter mile of West Florida Hospital, the major 
traffic generator. Within 500 ft. of the parcel there are day care centers, a fire station and 
churches, which are all compatible with HDMU.   In addition, the parcel across the street owned 
by West Florida Hospital is zoned commercial. The parcel to the east of the subject parcel is 
zoned HDMU as is all the property on Lawton street, directly to the east of the subject parcel.   
Two blocks to the west of the subject parcel is zoned commercial and the street directly to the 
north, is zoned HDMU and commercial.  This small area zoned MDR is surrounded by a mix of 
Commercial and HDMU.  This is an area that would fit the FLU as it is a transitional area and is 
within a quarter mile of an arterial highway. 









Detail by Entity Name

Florida Department of State

flu ti/ti'•Hil•"><ti>:';rjfHqerijtt; .yjiiivdte

Department of State / Division of Corporations / Search Records / Detail By Document Number /

Detail by Entity Name
Florida Limited Liability Company

CROSBY HOLDINGS LLC

Filing Information

Document Number

FEI/EIN Number

Date Filed

Effective Date

State

Status

Last Event

Event Date Filed

Principal Address

5500 HIGHWAY 99

MOLINO, FL 32577

Mailing Address

5500 HIGHWAY 99

MOLINO, FL 32577

Registered Agent Name & Address

CROSBY, MATTHEWT

5500 HIGHWAY 99

MOLINO, FL 32577

Name Changed: 10/19/2016

Authorized Person(s) Detail

Name & Address

Title MGR

CROSBY, MATTHEW T

5500 HIGHWAY 99

MOLINO, FL 32577

Title MGR

CROSBY, KRISTI L

5500 HIGHWAY 99

MOLINO, FL 32577

L15000200645

37-1798114

12/01/2015

12/01/2015

FL

ACTIVE

REINSTATEMENT

10/19/2016

Page 1 of2

Division of Corporations

http://search.suiibiz.org/Inquiry/C^ 7/19/2018











 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 

Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 

  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 

 
DATE: August 14, 2018 

 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – Z-2018-13 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case (Z)-2018-13, 2334 Klinger Street, 
agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled on September 4, 2018. 
Please see the below comments. 

Klinger Street is two lane local road without shoulders, curb and gutter or 
sidewalks.  The approximate pavement width is 18 feet with two nine-foot travel 
lanes.  Right of Way is 66 feet with portions of the roadway showing only 66 feet 
of easement.  There is a considerable amount of vehicular and school bus traffic 
that uses Klinger / Beal for access to the rear of the school on Davis Highway. 

Currently, there are no on-going or programmed projects on Klinger Street 
showing in the County’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Likewise, there are 
no ongoing or programmed projects on the adjacent segment of Davis Highway 
(SR  291) in either the County’s CIP or the Florida Department of Transportation’s 
five-year work program.  There is programmed sidewalk construction on nearby 
Johnson Avenue. 

Klinger Street is classified as a local street and assumed to be functioning 
within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes. Per the TPO’s Congestion 
Management Process Plan, Davis Highway (SR 291) is classified as a minor 
arterial with an allowable vehicular capacity of 39,800 and a year 2017 daily 
volume of 30,500 vehicles.   

TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 
comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the 
Development Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 Juan Lemos, CFM, Development Services Department 



   
Planning Board-Rezoning   7. E.           
Meeting Date: 09/04/2018  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of Bridlewood Subdivision, a

Planned Unit Development.
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of Russo Subdivision, a Planned Unit Development

That the Board review the development plan for Bridlewood residential subdivision, a
Planned Unit Development (PUD), and confirm consistency of the plan with Land
Development Code (LDC) requirements prior to transmittal of a recommendation to the
Board of  County Commissioners (BCC) to review and consider the plan for a final
decision.

BACKGROUND:
Rebol-Battle & Associates, Consulting Engineers, project agent and engineer, submitted
a Master Plan and associated subdivision development plans for PUD approval. The
proposed subdivision is located in Section 16, Township 1 South, Range 31 West and is
currently mostly zoned LDR with a little portion of MDR. The site is located on the North
side of Mobile Highway West of Klondike Road and East of Beulah Road. The project
encompasses approximately 322.99± acres total which also includes 221.82 acres of
wetlands.  The subject parcels are 16-1S-31-2000-513-005, 16-1S-31-2000-510-005,
16-1S-31-2000-600-005 and will include 388 lots.

Sewer and Water are provided by ECUA. Storm water treatment and attenuation will be
accomplished by a retention pond meeting Escambia County and NWFWMD
requirements. Conveyance of storm water will be accomplished through a retention pond
discharging into surrounding wetlands. No wetland impacts are expected with the
proposed development. The proposed site plan indicates that the lot will be accessed
from Mobile Highway only.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the approval of this PUD.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The legal advertisement of the PUD has been reviewed and approved for legal



The legal advertisement of the PUD has been reviewed and approved for legal
sufficiency by Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney.  Any recommended
legal comments are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Section 2-6.8 of the Land Development Code requires that the Planning Board review
the PUD in a quasi-judicial public hearing and transmit its recommendation to the BCC
for a final decision on the development plan.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The PUD has been reviewed and commented upon by the Development Review
Committee prior to consideration and recommendation by the Planning Board. Approval
of the proposed development plan by the BCC would authorize the applicant to proceed
under the conditions of a PUD preliminary plat Development Order, including the
subsequent submission of an implementing subdivision infrastructure construction plan
for county approval. Upon completion of construction and Final Plat approval, the
Building Inspections Department would be authorized to issue permits allowing
construction of homes on all residential lots within the subdivision.

Attachments
Master Plan Drawing
PUD Report from Applicant
Lighting
Illustrative Site Plan
Staff Analysis



Line Table (F) Curve Table (F)Line Table (P)

Curve Table (P)

Line Table (D)

1

23
01

 N
. N

in
th

 A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 3

00
P

en
sa

co
la

, F
lo

rid
a 

32
50

3
Te

le
ph

on
e 

85
0.

43
8.

04
00

  F
ax

 8
50

.4
38

.0
44

8

R
E

B
O

L-
B

A
TT

LE
 &

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

E
B

 0
00

09
65

7

SEAL

DRAWING No.

Dr. By:
Ck By:
Job No.:
Date:

Th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
is

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
f R

eb
ol

-B
at

tle
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 a
nd

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

is
si

on
.

PAUL A. BATTLE, P.E.
No.53126

CBD
PAB
2017.274
7/19/2018

N
o.

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
IO

N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SCALE: 1" = 2000'

OWNER AND DEVELOPER

SITE INFORMATION

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO'S: 16-1S-31-2000-513-005;
16-1S-31-2000-510-005;
16-1S-31-2000-600-005

PROPERTY ADDRESS: STEEPLECHASE BOULEVARD

TOTAL SITE AREA: 322.99 ACRES

ZONING DISTRICT: LDR & MDR

FUTURE LAND USE: MU-S

PROPOSED MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 50'

CIVIL ENGINEER

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR
AND MAPPER

UTILITY SERVICE PROVIDERS:

BELL SOUTH
605 GARDEN STREET
PENSACOLA, FL 32501

COX COMMUNICATIONS
2421 EXECUTIVE PLAZA ROAD

PENSACOLA, FL 32504

GULF POWER
ONE ENERGY PLACE

PENSACOLA, FL 32520-0047

ECUA
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
9300 STURDEVANT STREET
PENSACOLA, FL 32514-0311

PENSACOLA ENERGY
1625 ATWOOD DRIVE

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32504

FLOOD ZONE NOTE:

IT IS THE OPINION OF THE UNDERSIGNED SURVEYOR & MAPPER THAT THE

PARCEL OF LAND SHOWN HEREON IS IN ZONE “X”, AREAS DETERMINED TO BE

OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN, AREAS WITHIN THE 0.2%

ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN, AND ZONE "AE" BASED ON THE FEDERAL

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 12033C0290G,

EFFECTIVE DATE OF SEPTEMBER 29, 2006.

CLEARING NOTE:

PRIOR TO ANY LAND DISTURBANCE, THE DEVELOPER / CONTRACTOR SHALL
OBTAIN ALL COUNTY, STATE AND/OR FEDERAL APPLICABLE PERMITS
GOVERNING THE CLEARING ACTIVITIES

UTILITY SERVICE NOTES:

POTABLE WATER/FIRE PROTECTION:
6", 8" AND 12" POTABLE WATER/FIRE PROTECTION MAINS ARE PROPOSED FOR THE SUBDIVISION.
THE POINTS OF CONNECTION WILL BE THE EXISTING ECUA MAINS ON STEEPLECHASE BOULEVARD.
AFTER FINAL ACCEPTANCE, ALL WATER INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL BE OWNED, OPERATED, AND
MAINTAINED BY ECUA.

SANITARY SEWER:
THE DEVELOPMENT WILL BE SERVICED BY A COMBINATION OF ECUA LOW PRESSURE SEWER MAINS,
GRAVITY SEWER MAINS, AND CENTRAL ECUA LIFT STATIONS. THE POINT OF CONNECTION WILL BE
THE ECUA GRAVITY MAIN ON STEEPLECHASE BOULEVARD. AFTER FINAL ACCEPTANCE, ALL SEWER
INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL BE OWNED, OPERATED, AND MAINTAINED BY ECUA.

STORM SEWER:
THE STORMWATER COLLECTION AND CONVEYANCE SYSTEM WILL CONSIST OF INLETS, PIPING,
CURB, GUTTER, AND GRASSED SWALES. STORMWATER WILL BE TREATED AND ATTENUATED IN
STORMWATER RETENTION PONDS. ALL STORMWATER IMPROVEMENT WILL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH
THE ASSOCIATED PHASE. AFTER FINAL PLAT APPROVAL,  STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE
OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY ESCAMBIA COUNTY.

ELECTRIC, GAS, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION:
THESE SERVICES WILL BE INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED BY THE ASSOCIATED UTILITY COMPANY.

SITE ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

SITE ENVIRONMENTAL NOTES:

1. ALL WETLAND AND WETLAND BUFFER IMPACTS MUST BE PERMITTED THROUGH
ACOE, NWFWMD, AND ESCAMBIA COUNTY PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

2. A PROTECTED TREE SURVEY WILL BE CONDUCTED FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL
PHASE TO DETERMINE THE PRESENCE OF HERITAGE TREES.

3. INDIVIDUAL LOT GEOMETRIES SHOWN ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT THE TIME
OF PLATTING EACH INDIVIDUAL PHASE. ANY OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
WILL BE REVIEWED FOR EACH PHASE.

PHASE CALCULATIONS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 3:
PARCELS C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-5, C-6, C-7, C-8, D-1, D-2, D-3, D-4, AND D-5, BRIDLEWOOD,
AS PER PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 19, PAGES 21, 21A THROUGH 21H,
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA.

A MASTER PLAN OF
BRIDLEWOOD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

BEING A RESUBDIVISION OF PORTIONS OF PLAT BOOK 19, PAGE 21-21H
 ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

August 8, 2018

SEC. 3-2.5 LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (LDR).SEC. 3-2.5 LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (LDR).

1. DENSITY: A MAXIMUM OF FOUR (4) DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE.

2. FLOOR AREA RATIO: A MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA RATIO OF 1.0 FOR ALL USES.

3. STRUCTURE HEIGHT: A MAXIMUM STRUCTURE HEIGHT OF 45 FEET ABOVE HIGHEST
ADJACENT GRADE UNLESS OTHERWISE PRESCRIBED BY USE.

4. LOT AREA: NO MINIMUM LOT AREA UNLESS PRESCRIBED BY USE.

5. LOT WIDTH: A MINIMUM LOT WIDTH OF 20 FEET AT THE STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR
CUL-DE-SAC LOTS AND 50 FEET FOR ALL OTHER LOTS.

6. LOT COVERAGE: MINIMUM PERVIOUS LOT COVERAGE OF 30 PERCENT (70 PERCENT
MAXIMUM SEMI-IMPERVIOUS AND IMPERVIOUS COVER) FOR ALL USES.

7. STRUCTURE SETBACKS: FOR ALL PRINCIPAL STRUCTURES, MINIMUM SETBACKS ARE:

A. FRONT AND REAR: TWENTY-FIVE (25) FEET IN THE FRONT AND REAR.

B. SIDES: ON EACH SIDE, FIVE (5) FEET OR 10 PERCENT OF THE LOT WIDTH AT THE FRONT
BUILDING LINE, WHICHEVER IS GREATER, BUT NOT REQUIRED TO EXCEED 15 FEET.

AMENITY TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line #

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
L25

AutoCAD SHX Text
L26

AutoCAD SHX Text
L27

AutoCAD SHX Text
L28

AutoCAD SHX Text
L29

AutoCAD SHX Text
L30

AutoCAD SHX Text
L31

AutoCAD SHX Text
L32

AutoCAD SHX Text
L33

AutoCAD SHX Text
L34

AutoCAD SHX Text
L35

AutoCAD SHX Text
L36

AutoCAD SHX Text
L37

AutoCAD SHX Text
L38

AutoCAD SHX Text
L39

AutoCAD SHX Text
L40

AutoCAD SHX Text
L41

AutoCAD SHX Text
L42

AutoCAD SHX Text
Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
221.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
187.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
119.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
139.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
119.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
226.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
189.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
63.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
168.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
247.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
189.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
190.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
131.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Direction

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°32'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72°52'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°57'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°46'02"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°13'54"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°46'06"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°46'06"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N21°48'58."E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S20°02'39"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S42°42'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°14'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N59°48'02"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N85°58'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S39°27'02"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S7°57'01"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N83°57'25"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N34°49'16"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N71°49'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N7°33'14"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N25°39'04"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N11°17'12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S69°28'27"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N56°50'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°46'06"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°13'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°46'06"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°13'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S65°00'04"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°12'59"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S25°52'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6°34'21"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S20°38'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°22'45"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°33'46"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°26'14"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°33'46"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°26'14"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°33'46"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S0°26'14"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°33'46"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°30'08"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curve #

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1 (C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6 (C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
C10

AutoCAD SHX Text
C11

AutoCAD SHX Text
C12 (C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C13

AutoCAD SHX Text
C14

AutoCAD SHX Text
C15 (C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C19

AutoCAD SHX Text
Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
288.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
335.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
342.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
386.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
176.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
114.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
125.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
197.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
345.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Radius

AutoCAD SHX Text
219.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
640.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
430.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
600.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
578.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
326.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
820.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
220.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Central Angle

AutoCAD SHX Text
75°08'50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
51°11'57"

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8°18'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
29°59'34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°41'13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
25°38'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36°52'58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
64°22'20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
201°52'50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
38°31'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12°28'50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34°35'28"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7°00'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chord

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
333.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
88.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
379.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
125.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
194.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
311.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chord Bearing

AutoCAD SHX Text
N64°37'59"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S44°46'06"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45°13'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N86°04'52"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N29°05'40"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S19°04'31"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S50°20'27"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N79°01'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N32°12'51"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S55°56'57"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N47°28'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S45°26'14"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1 (D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
289.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
219.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75°21'50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
268.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N52°50'45"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
330.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
770.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24°32'34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°13'58"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line #

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
221.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
187.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Direction

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°32'47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72°52'36"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R. HORTON, INC 25366 PROFIT DRIVE DAPHNE, AL 36526 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAUL A. BATTLE, P.E. REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES, LLC 2301 NORTH NINTH AVE., SUITE 300 PENSACOLA, FL 32503 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK A. NORRIS P.S.M.  REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES, LLC 2301 NORTH NINTH AVE., SUITE 300 PENSACOLA, FL 32503 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERALL SITE AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
322.99 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS (ACOE, NWFWMD, ESCO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
221.82 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.82 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.93 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BUFFER IMPACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.50 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. OF RESIDENTIAL LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACREAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
388

AutoCAD SHX Text
322.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMENITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTED IN PHASE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMENITY SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOG PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALKS (BOTH SIDES OF ROAD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,2,3,4

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,3,4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSERVATION EASEMENT / RECREATIONAL AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPLAND BUFFERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,2,3,4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKING TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENHANCED ENTRY SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,2,3,4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE STREET LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,2,3,4

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOMEBUILDER LANDSCAPE PACKAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,2,3,4



2

23
01

 N
. N

in
th

 A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 3

00
P

en
sa

co
la

, F
lo

rid
a 

32
50

3
Te

le
ph

on
e 

85
0.

43
8.

04
00

  F
ax

 8
50

.4
38

.0
44

8

R
E

B
O

L-
B

A
TT

LE
 &

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

E
B

 0
00

09
65

7

SEAL

DRAWING No.

Dr. By:
Ck By:
Job No.:
Date:

Th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
is

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
f R

eb
ol

-B
at

tle
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 a
nd

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

is
si

on
.

PAUL A. BATTLE, P.E.
No.53126

CBD
PAB
2017.274
7/19/2018

N
o.

D
A

TE
R

E
V

IS
IO

N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

LEGEND

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

LOT

MOBILE HIGHWAY

(STATE ROAD 10A)

S
TE

E
P

LE
C

H
A

S
E

 B
O

U
LE

V
A

R
D

50
' P

U
B

LI
C

 R
/W

S
IN

G
LE

 T
R

A
C

E
50

' P
U

B
LI

C
 R

/W

32

31

33

30

FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS DETAIL

A MASTER PLAN OF
BRIDLEWOOD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

BEING A RESUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF PLAT BOOK 19, PAGE 21-21H
 ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

August 8, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4101-000-003  DOUGLAS JASON L DOUGLAS TAMMY L 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4101-000-002  DOUGLAS JASON L & DOUGLAS TAMMY L 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4101-000-007  MOORE LARRY D & DEBORAH K ZONE: MDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4101-001-007  DILGARD JOHN CHRISTIAN & DILGARD HEATHER ASHLEY ZONE: MDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4101-000-009  RHODES EARL J & RHODES CHARLENE E ZONE: MDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4101-001-009  PERRY JUNE E ZONE: MDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4101-000-008  BARNEY JOHN JR ZONE: MDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFORMATION UNAVAILABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-000-100  STILLER BARBARA M 2/4 INT STILLER JIMMY L 1/4 INT GLENN LISA C 1/4 INT ZONE: MDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-002-082  JARES KENNETH W & JARES KAROL ZONE: MDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-005-082 JARES KENNETH W & JARES KAROLE ZONE: MDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-001-082  HENDERSON JAMES S & LAURA TRACY ZONE: MDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-000-082  FELL EDNA M ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-004-082 BJORENSEN ARLINE ZONE: LDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-000-082  FELL EDNA M ZONE: LDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
15-1S-31-2102-000-000  ESCAMBIA COUNTY ZONE: Rec 

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-1S-31-4200-002-100  NATURE TRAIL CONSERVANCY INC ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
08-1S-31-3402-805-004  HUNTINGTON CREEK COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION INC ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-1S-31-2101-000-000  ESCAMBIA COUNTY ZONE: REC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-1S-31- 1000-000-003  ESCAMBIA COUNTY ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-2330-000-002  THOMPSON MEAT SUPPLY INC ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-2330-000-005  WISE DONALD E ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-2330-000-006  WISE CLAYTON E ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-4102-010-082  KIMBRELL J S & ANN ZONE: LDR LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PUBLIC R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER PARCEL (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER PARCEL (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER PARCEL (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER PARCEL (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER PARCEL (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED AMENITIES PARCEL CONSTRUCTED WITH PHASE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-3202-000-000  GUETHERMAN MARY M ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°51'53" W 50.00' (P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S OO°37'40" W 349.47' (P)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER PARCEL (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESS AND EXCEPT HENDERSON PARCEL OR BOOK 6494 PAGE 1478

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-2000-600-005  GULF COAST COMMUNITY BANK ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-2000-513-005  MOBILE HWY PENSACOLA LLC ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-2000-510-005  MOBILE HWY PENSACOLA LLC ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17-1S-31- 1000-030-001  LEE JEFFERY ZONE: LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-1S-31-1101-000-001  INTERNATIONAL PAPER COMPANY ZONE: LDR LDR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND CONSERVATION AREA ±221.9 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE (DOG PARK, PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ENTRY SIGN PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER PARCEL (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ECUA LIFT STATION PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ECUA LIFT STATION PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKING TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH =     FT. (24"x36")

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH =     FT. (12"x18")

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
JURISDICTIONAL WETLAND 25' AVERAGE WETLAND BUFFER PHASE LINE BOUNDARY LINE LOT LINE RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE EXISTING CONTOURS WETLAND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL LOT WIDTHS AND SETBACKS PER APPROVED PUD PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE



 
REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES 

Civil Engineers and Surveyors 
 
Planned Unit Development Report 
Bridlewood Subdivision 
Date: 8/9/2018 
RBA Project No.: 2017.274 
Escambia County Project No.: 18072410PSD-MP 
 
Project Narrative 
The development will consist of phased additions to a previously platted residential subdivision known 
as Bridlewood. Bridlewood is located on the north side of Mobile Highway, approximately 1.4-miles east 
of Beulah Road. The addition will create approximately 390 new lots intended for single-family detached 
homes. All roads and stormwater improvements will be dedicated to Escambia County. The property is  
zoned LDR which allows a minimum lot width of 60’ at the right-of-way line, and 25’ front and rear 
setbacks. A PUD is proposed to allow a reduction in the lot width to 50’, and a reduction in the front and 
rear setbacks to 20’ and 15’ respectively. The overall proposed density of the subdivision with 50’ lots 
will remain below the maximum allowable density of the LDR district (< 4 du/acre). The property is 
surrounded by multiple properties zoned MDR in the immediate vicinity. The MDR district allows 50’ 
lots, ensuring Bridlewood would remain compatible with surrounding areas. The developer proposes a 
mix of several different models of dwelling units throughout the subdivision. 
 
The Master Plan for the overall development received a development order in 2007 under the name of 
“Viansa”. At the time, the property was zoned R-R; the master plan exercised the clustering provision of 
the Land Development Code which reduced the lot width requirements to that of the R-3 zone. 
Subsequently, 50’ lots were approved on the Master Plan. The first phase of the Master Plan was 
constructed between 2008 and 2010, and platted in 2012 with 50’ lots. The remaining phases remain 
undeveloped. The zoning districts in Escambia County were consolidated in 2015 and this property was 
classified as LDR. The current Land Development Code as of 2018 no longer allows lots in the LDR zone 
to be reduced to 50’ under the revised clustering provision. As an approved Planned Unit Development, 
the proposed subdivision would closely resemble the Master Plan approved by Escambia County in 
2007; utilizing 50’ lots while providing several amenities for public benefit beyond what is required by 
the Land Development Code.  
 
Proposed PUD Variances 
Minimum Lot Width and Setback Requirements: 

(1) 3-2.5(d)(5): For all lots with the exception of cul-de-sac lots, a reduction of the minimum lot 
width  from 60’ at the street right-of-way to 50’ at the street right of way is requested. 
Minimum lot width for cul-de-sac lots remains unchanged at 20’.  

(2) 3-2.5(d)(7): For all principal structures, the minimum front setback is requested to be 
reduced from 25’ to 20’. 

(3) 3-2.5(d)(7): For all principal structures, the minimum front setback is requested to be 
reduced from 25’ to 15’. 

 

2301 N. 9th Avenue, Suite 300 • Pensacola, Florida 32503 • 850.438.0400 • Fax: 
850.438.0448 

www.rebol-battle.com 



Page 2 

Proposed Features & Amenities 
The developers propose to provide the following amenities and features to Bridlewood: 
 

1. A centrally-located amenities site will be constructed in the second phase of development. The 
amenity site will include a swimming pool, clubhouse, open space, and on-site parking. 
Restrooms and a kitchen will be included in the clubhouse. The location of the proposed 
amenities site is shown on the attached master plan. Construction of the clubhouse and pool 
will be completed prior to the Phase 2 final plat recording. 

2. Several additional common areas are to be provided throughout the subdivision. Two common 
areas will be created in the first phase, as well as another in the 3rd phase. One of the common 
areas in the first phase will be converted to a dog park. The location of the dog park and 
common areas are shown on the attached master plan. 

3. 5’ wide sidewalks will be provided on both sides of every proposed right-of-way in all phases to 
promote pedestrian mobility between the residential areas and the amenity areas. To avoid 
damage to the sidewalks, the homebuilder will construct the sidewalks on an individual lot basis 
after the completion of each home. 

4. All unimpacted wetlands on site (approximately 220-acres) will be preserved through a 
perpetual conservation easement. This shall exceed the minimum preservation required by 
county, state and/or federal mitigation standards. The conservation easement will be recorded 
in the 2nd phase of development. 

5. Upland buffers in exceedance of the required 25’ will be provided wherever possible to protect 
the surrounding environmentally sensitive areas and natural vegetation. Widened buffers will be 
provided in all phases of development. The widened upland buffers are identified on the 
attached Master Plan. 

6. A natural walking trail is proposed to connect the 3rd phase of development to the 1st phase. 
Please see the attached conceptual subdivision rendering for the location of the walking trail. 

7. A landscape architect will be engaged to design attractive entry features. A large decorative 
“Bridlewood” subdivision sign will be placed near the subdivision entry. Landscaping will be 
planted around the proposed sign. A rendering of the proposed entry sign is attached. All entry 
improvements will be installed in the first phase of development. 

8. All utilities throughout the subdivision shall be underground. Overhead power lines will not be 
used in any phase of development. Sanitary sewer service will be provided to all residents. No 
potable water wells or septic tanks shall be utilized for this project. 

9. Decorative street lighting will be used in all phases. An upgraded style of lighting above the Gulf 
Power standard model, such as the “Colonial” style, or approved equal, is proposed. A sample of 
the proposed street lighting is attached to this report. 

10. The homebuilder will provide a landscape package for each lot. The homebuilder will plant 
trees, shrubs, and install sod on each lot purchased. This is available in all phases. 

 
 
 

2301 N. 9th Avenue, Suite 300 • Pensacola, Florida 32503 • 850.438.0400 • Fax: 
850.438.0448 

www.rebol-battle.com 



Page 3 

Phasing Schedule 
The Bridlewood Planned Unit Development is split into four (4) phases. Tables on sheet 1 of the Master 
Plan include the lot count, acreage, and proposed amenities within each phase. 
 
Stormwater Management Plan 
A stormwater management plan for the subdivision will meet all requirements of the Land Development 
Code and Design Standards Manual. All stormwater retention facilities will be designed for the 100-year 
critical duration storm event. 

 
Figures 
 

 
Figure 1 – Project Location Map (above) 
 
Figure 2 – Proposed Master Plan of Bridlewood (attached) 
 
Figure 3 – Illustrative Site Plan of Bridlewood Planned Unit Development by WAS Design (attached) 
 
Figure 4 – Previously approved Master Plan of Bridlewood from 2007; formerly known as Viansa (attached) 

2301 N. 9th Avenue, Suite 300 • Pensacola, Florida 32503 • 850.438.0400 • Fax: 
850.438.0448 

www.rebol-battle.com 



Page 4 

 
 
Figure 5 – Zoning Map (above) 

2301 N. 9th Avenue, Suite 300 • Pensacola, Florida 32503 • 850.438.0400 • Fax: 
850.438.0448 

www.rebol-battle.com 





Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

125

250

500N

Scale: 1”=250’

N

WETLAND 
CONSERVATION/ 

RECREATION AREA

WALKING TRAIL

DOG PARK

OPEN 
SPACE

POOL 
AMENITY 

SITE

ENTRY 
FEATURE

WETLAND 
CONSERVATION/ 

RECREATION AREA

WETLAND

WETLAND

STORMWATER
PARCEL

STORMWATER
PARCEL

WETLAND

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

OPEN SPACE

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

STORMWATER 
PARCEL STORMWATER

PARCEL

EXISTING 
DEVELOPED LOTS

WETLAND 
BUFFER TYP.

WETLAND 
BUFFER TYP.

4th ADDITION
(FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 
SHOWN FOR GRAPHICAL 
PURPOSES ONLY)

WETLANDPH
A

SE
 3 PH

A
SE

 1

PH
A

SE
 2

PH
A

SE
 4



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N
0

5

10

20N

Scale: 1”=10’

ENTRY FEATURE PHOTO SIMULATIONENTRY FEATURE ENLARGEMENT

ENTRY FEATURE MODEL

ENTRY 
FEATURE

ST
EE

PL
EC

H
A

SE
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N
0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

Not to ScalePHASE 1 ENLARGEMENT SCHEMATIC POOL AMENITY - FINAL LAYOUT AND DESIGN TO BE DETERMINED

POOL 
AMENITY 

SITE

STORMWATER
PARCEL

DOG PARK

PROPOSED LOTS

PERGOLA

POOL

CLUBHOUSE

PARKING



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

INSPIRATION IMAGES (NEED NOT BE BUILT)

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N

Scale: 1”=300’

0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

PHASE 2 ENLARGEMENT

STORMWATER
PARCEL

WETLAND

WETLAND

OPEN SPACE

STORMWATER
PARCEL



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N

Scale: 1”=300’

0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

PHASE 3 ENLARGEMENT

STORMWATER
PARCEL

OPEN 
SPACE

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

WALKING TRAIL

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

STORMWATER 
PARCEL



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N
0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

PHASE 4 ENLARGEMENT

STORMWATER
PARCEL

















Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

125

250

500N

Scale: 1”=250’

N

WETLAND 
CONSERVATION/ 

RECREATION AREA

WALKING TRAIL

DOG PARK

OPEN 
SPACE

POOL 
AMENITY 

SITE

ENTRY 
FEATURE

WETLAND 
CONSERVATION/ 

RECREATION AREA

WETLAND

WETLAND

STORMWATER
PARCEL

STORMWATER
PARCEL

WETLAND

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

OPEN SPACE

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

STORMWATER 
PARCEL STORMWATER

PARCEL

EXISTING 
DEVELOPED LOTS

WETLAND 
BUFFER TYP.

WETLAND 
BUFFER TYP.

4th ADDITION
(FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 
SHOWN FOR GRAPHICAL 
PURPOSES ONLY)

WETLANDPH
A

SE
 3 PH

A
SE

 1

PH
A

SE
 2

PH
A

SE
 4



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N
0

5

10

20N

Scale: 1”=10’

ENTRY FEATURE PHOTO SIMULATIONENTRY FEATURE ENLARGEMENT

ENTRY FEATURE MODEL

ENTRY 
FEATURE

ST
EE

PL
EC

H
A

SE
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N
0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

Not to ScalePHASE 1 ENLARGEMENT SCHEMATIC POOL AMENITY - FINAL LAYOUT AND DESIGN TO BE DETERMINED

POOL 
AMENITY 

SITE

STORMWATER
PARCEL

DOG PARK

PROPOSED LOTS

PERGOLA

POOL

CLUBHOUSE

PARKING



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

INSPIRATION IMAGES (NEED NOT BE BUILT)

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N

Scale: 1”=300’

0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

PHASE 2 ENLARGEMENT

STORMWATER
PARCEL

WETLAND

WETLAND

OPEN SPACE

STORMWATER
PARCEL



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N

Scale: 1”=300’

0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

PHASE 3 ENLARGEMENT

STORMWATER
PARCEL

OPEN 
SPACE

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

WALKING TRAIL

STORMWATER 
PARCEL

STORMWATER 
PARCEL



Bridlewood - Pensacola, Florida Planned Unit Development08.10.18

REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES

Civil Engineers and Surveyors

0

150

300

600N
0

50

100

200N

Scale: 1”=100’

PHASE 4 ENLARGEMENT

STORMWATER
PARCEL



1 
 

Staff Analysis of Specific Land Development Code (LDC) 

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Approval Criteria for Bridlewood 
Master Plan Subdivision 

 

LDC Sec. 2-6.8 Planned Unit Developments. 

(a) General. Planned unit development is an optional and supplemental 
compliance review process for the subdivision of land. It allows flexibility in LDC 
requirements to encourage greater creativity in land use planning and design for 
the mutual benefit of developers and the public.  The intent of the PUD is to obtain 
benefits not anticipated by the strict application of zoning district regulations and 
subdivision standards, and not available by other variance processes.  For the 
private gain of greater design flexibility, developers are required to provide greater 
public benefits through permanently preserved common open space, infrastructure 
improvements, accommodation of environmental and aesthetic features, and other 
permanent site improvements and amenities benefiting public health, safety and 
welfare. Proposed PUD is evaluated first through a quasi-judicial public hearing by 
the Planning Board and then by the Board of County Commissioners (BCC).  

General description of proposed development: The project is located in Escambia 
County approximately 1.4 miles east of Beulah Road on the north side of Mobile 
Highway, State Road 10A US Highway 90. The site is in Section 16, Township 1 
South, Range 31 West. The project is a proposed planned unit development, 
situated on an approximate (+‐) total 322.99± acres located within mostly Low 
Density Residential (LDR) zoning district and a small section of Medium Density 
Residential (MDR) district and the Mixed Use-Suburban, (MU-S) Future Land Use 
Category.  

The applicant is requesting variations as follows: 

1.  A reduction of the required minimum width at the front building line from 60 
feet to 50 feet, for all lots. 

2. A reduction of the required minimum front setbacks from 25 feet to 20 feet , for 
all lots. 

3. A reduction of the required minimum rear setbacks from 25 feet to 15 feet, for 
all lots. 

(b) Limits on PUD.  Planned unit development can be used to mix land uses, 
provide broader housing choices, and allow more compact development through 
specific height, area, yard, size and use requirements that are different in any or all 
respects from those required by the applicable zoning district, or subdivision 
design standards different from those prescribed in [LDC] Chapter 5. Planned unit 
development is allowed for subdivision within any zoning district or future land use 
category, but it is subject to the following limitations: 



2 
 

(1) Land uses.  Land uses may vary from the specific uses allowed by the 
applicable zoning district, but they shall comply with the range of allowed uses 
within the applicable future land use category. 

The proposed single-family residential use is allowed by the applicable 
zoning district and future land use category. 

(2) Density.  The number of dwelling units shall not exceed the density 
allowed by the applicable future land use category or zoning district.  

The proposed number of dwelling units does not exceed the residential   
density allowed by the zoning district and the applicable future land use 
category. The applicant is proposing 1.2 dwelling units per acre verse 
the allowed four dwelling units per acre.  

(3) Other processes. The PUD process supplements but does not replace 
other applicable compliance review processes of the LDC, including those for 
approval of preliminary plats, construction plans, and final plats. 

The preliminary development plan of the PUD has been forwarded to 
the Planning Board for its consideration after review and written 
comment by the members of the Development Review Committee 
(DRC). Prior to PUD plan review and final determination by the Board of 
County Commissioners (BCC), the plan must address any remaining 
conditions of LDC compliance not modified by the proposed variances 
of the PUD and must respond to any conditions of the Planning Board’s 
recommendation to the BCC. 

The essential commitments of the development plan and the 
expectations of the county will be established upon BCC approval of the 
PUD, which includes the preliminary plat and associated documenting 
plans. The implementing subdivision infrastructure construction plans 
and final plat must be in substantial conformance with the approved 
PUD plans as determined through the established review and approval 
processes of the LDC. 

(4) Standards. The PUD process shall not modify any level of service 
standards for adequate public facilities or standards for accessibility, life 
safety, or health. 

The proposed development will comply with all applicable level of 
service standards. 

(c) Compliance review. The Planning Board shall conduct a quasi-judicial public 
hearing as noticed to consider whether conditions warrant the proposed 
modifications and make recommendations regarding the proposal to the BCC 
and for them to consider and act on those recommendations. 



3 
 

The Planning Official has forwarded the proposed PUD and an analysis of 
its compliance with the requirements of the Land Development Code to the 
Planning Board for its required consideration and recommendation. 

(d) Criteria for PUD approval. The applicant has the burden of presenting 
competent substantial evidence to the [Planning] board that establishes each of 
the following conditions for the PUD: 

(1) Creative Planning.  Uses and structures are arranged in a manner that 
demonstrates creative concepts of land use planning throughout the 
development area.  Residential uses include a complementary and 
sustainable mix of dwelling unit types or mix with non-residential uses. 

The presence of wetlands on the property constrains viable arrangements 
of uses and structures and limits creative development options on the 
remaining uplands. As well there is a “X” and “AE” Floodzone part of 
FEMA’s Special Flood Hazard Areas on the development parcel. A further 
review during the Site Plan Review Process will be evaluated. Single-family 
dwellings appear to be a sustainable land use for the site, but no mix of 
dwelling unit types is documented in the submitted plans. No non-
residential uses other than accessory to the dwellings are proposed within 
the subdivision. 

1. Recommendation: That the PUD document the characteristics of dwelling 
units to which the PUD can commit, including floor area, stories, provision 
of garage or other parking outside of rights-of-way, and any diversity of 
housing styles and materials. At the time of construction, the proposed 
project must meet all of the construction standards from the Florida Building 
Code, for structures within a FEMA Special Flood Hazard Area. 

(2) Natural amenities.  Clustering, setbacks, easements and other methods 
are utilized to preserve to the greatest extent practicable the natural 
amenities and characteristics of the land, including open space, topography, 
natural vegetation, groundwater recharge, waterways, and scenic views.  
Deficiencies in natural amenities are supplemented through landscaping and 
other enhancements. 

Smaller lots and reduced building setbacks are among the methods used to 
maintain viable density while preserving natural amenities. The applicant 
has stated that 220± wetlands will remain undisturbed and maintained 
under a conservation easement and be recorded in phase II as LDC 
clustering provisions would require. 

Recommendation: That the PUD cluster the proposed development on the 
upland area of the site such that the wetlands and wetland buffer area is 
excluded from residential lots, a conservation easement will be executed 
and the conservation area is dedicated to the home owners association to 



4 
 

comply with the minimum clustering provisions of the LDC (DSM Sec. 1-2). 
The complete exclusion of wetlands from individual lots and minimized 
buffer impacts is preferred. 

(3) Desirable environment.  A more desirable environment in which to live or 
work is created than would be possible through the strict application of the 
minimum requirements of the LDC.  Common open space area is within 
reasonable walking distance of all dwelling units in the development. 

The proposed development will be completed in four phases. Plan includes  

1. A centrally-located amenities site will be constructed in the second phase of 
development. The amenity site will include a swimming pool, clubhouse, open 
space, and on-site parking. Restrooms and a kitchen will be included in the 
clubhouse. Construction of the clubhouse and pool will be completed prior to 
the Phase 2 final plat recording. 

2. Several additional common areas are to be provided throughout the 
subdivision. Two common areas will be created in the first phase, as well as 
another in the 3rd phase. One of the common areas in the first phase will be 
converted to a dog park.  

3. Five (5) foot wide sidewalks will be provided on both sides of every proposed 
right-of-way in all phases to promote pedestrian mobility between the 
residential areas and the amenity areas. To avoid damage to the sidewalks, 
the homebuilder will construct the sidewalks on an individual lot basis after the 
completion of each home.  

4. All unimpacted wetlands on site (approximately 220-acres) will be preserved 
through a perpetual conservation easement. This shall exceed the minimum 
preservation required by county, state and/or federal mitigation standards. 
The conservation easement will be recorded in the 2nd phase of development.  

5. Upland buffers in exceedance of the required 25’ will be provided wherever 
possible to protect the surrounding environmentally sensitive areas and 
natural vegetation. Widened buffers will be provided in all phases of 
development. The widened upland buffers are identified on the attached 
Master Plan.  

6. A natural walking trail is proposed to connect the 3rd phase of development 
to the 1st phase. Please see the attached conceptual subdivision rendering for 
the location of the walking trail.  

7. A landscape architect will be engaged to design attractive entry features. A 
large decorative “Bridlewood” subdivision sign will be placed near the 
subdivision entry. Landscaping will be planted around the proposed sign. A 
rendering of the proposed entry sign is attached. All entry improvements will 
be installed in the first phase of development.  



5 
 

8. All utilities throughout the subdivision shall be underground. Overhead 
power lines will not be used in any phase of development. Sanitary sewer 
service will be provided to all residents. No potable water wells or septic tanks 
shall be utilized for this project. 

9. Decorative street lighting will be used in all phases. An upgraded style of 
lighting above the Gulf Power standard model, such as the “Colonial” style, or 
approved equal, is proposed. A sample of the proposed street lighting is 
attached to this report.  

10. The homebuilder will provide a landscape package for each lot. The 
homebuilder will plant trees, shrubs, and install sod on each lot purchased. 
This is available in all phases. 

Recommendation: The PUD development plan submitted has shown many 
different illustrations of enhanced features from a typical subdivision. 
Further review will be needed at the time of preliminary and construction 
plans when submitted to Site Plan Review 

(4) Mobility.  Internal circulation systems promote both pedestrian and 
vehicular mobility, especially between residential areas and local public open 
space, schools, retail sales and services, and employment. Sidewalks are 
located on at least one side of every street to support safe pedestrian 
mobility within the development and appropriate access to surrounding uses.  

Safe and effective pedestrian and vehicular mobility within the subdivision 
is promoted through compact upland development, central park 
placement, and a network of sidewalks that includes the dog park 
perimeter.  

(5) Efficient land use. An efficient use of land results in smaller networks of 
streets and utilities. If street rights-of-way are proposed to be less than 
standard width, easements will provide adequate space to install and 
maintain utilities. 

The interconnection of subdivision streets, small lots, and the limitation of 
improvements limited by environmental features support an efficient use 
of land that results in smaller networks of streets and utilities. Easements 
will supplement proposed less-than-standard width rights-of-way to 
accommodate underground utilities. 

(6) Compatibility.  The development is compatible with surrounding areas 
and provides stable conditions and character to maintain long-term 
compatibility. 

The proposed density of single-family detached dwellings is compatible 
with the predominantly low density single-family development of the 
surrounding areas, and the constructed improvements of a residential 



6 
 

subdivision will provide the stable conditions and character to maintain 
that compatibility long term. 

Other considerations:  In the review and analysis of the proposed 
development the Planning Board may include conditions relative to the six 
LDC criteria for PUD approval to insure the intent of the process is achieved.  

 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft August 7, 2018 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
	Z-2018-08
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-08
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Prime Soils Map
	Wetlands Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Sunbiz Corporation Search
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2018-09
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-09
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Application
	Warranty Deed
	Applicant's Compatibility Analysis
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	Z-2018-11
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-11
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	CRA Map
	Photos
	Application
	Compatibility Analysis
	Proof of Ownership
	Applicants history of Parcel
	Death Certificate
	Boundary Survey
	CRA Comments
	TTO Comments

	Z-2018-13
	Att1_Working Case File
	Z-2018-13
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Application
	Applicant's Compatibility Analysis
	Proof of Ownership
	Corporation paperwork
	Legal Description
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments

	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of Bridlewood Subdivision, a Planned Unit Development.
	Att1_Master Plan Drawing
	Att2_PUD Report from Applicant
	Overall master plan.pdf
	ViansaPhaseI_MasterPlan_LandAreas
	ViansaPhaseI_MasterPlan_LandAreas_page2
	ViansaPhaseI_MasterPlan_LandAreas_page3
	ViansaPhaseI_MasterPlan_LandAreas_1stAddition
	ViansaPhaseI_MasterPlan_LandAreas_2ndAddition
	ViansaPhaseI_MasterPlan_LandAreas_3rdAddition


	Att3_Lighting
	Att4_Illustrative Site Plan
	Att5_Staff Analysis

